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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SVPPORTS AND SER VICES

I.ori A. Weaver ^05 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Interim Commissioner 603-271-5034 I-800-852-334S Ext. 5034

Fax:603-271-5166 TDD Access; 1-800-735-2964 www.dhlis.nh.gov
Melissa A. Hardy

Director

June 5. 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter into Sole Source contract with Northern Human Services, (VC#177222-
B004), Conway, NH to provide developmentai disability and acquired brain disorder services, with
an individual price limitation of $2,010,136, of which $1,000,000 is a shared amount among alt
Contractors, with no guaranteed maximum or minimum funding amount per Contractor effective
July 1, 2023, upon Governor and Council approval, through June 30, 2025.

The shared amount provides a contingency funds pool, available to all Contractors, upon
Department approval, during the Bureau of Developmental Services system transition. 6.03%
Federal Funds. 93.97% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Contractor is the only contractor In the region
able to provide the necessary services. NH RSA 171-A establishes Area Agencies as nonprofit
corporations designated to serve a geographic area, as adopted by the Department, to provide
services to persons with a developmental disability or acquired brain disorder in that area.
Pursuant to RSA 171-A:18. 1., the Area Agency is the primary recipient of funds provided by the
Department for use in establishing, operating and administering supports and services and
coordinating with existing services on behalf of persons with developmental disabilities served in
the area.

In accordance with RSA 171-A and RSA 126-C, the Area Agency is responsible for
establishing, maintaining, implementing, and coordinating a comprehensive service delivery
system for individuals with developmental disabilities and acquired brain disorders and their
families. This request will allow the Area Agency to provide developmental, acquired brain
disorder, and early supports and sen/Ices to adults, children, and families statewide. Through this
agreement, the Area Agency will work collaboratively with the Department on a variety of
initiatives designed to sustain a high-quality system of sen/ices and supports for people with
developmental disabilities. Including continuous quality Improvement activities, safeguarding the
rights of people involved in services, and provision of ongoing staff training.

Statewide, approximately 1,281 adults and children will tie served annually.



His ExceDency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabie Council
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The Area Agencies function as an integral part of the Organized Health Care Delivery
System operated by the Division of Long Term Supports and Services and approved by the Center
for Medicare & Medicaid Services in conjunction with three Medicaid funded Home and
Community-Based Care Services 1915c Waivers. The Area Agency will coordinate and provide
supports and services for individuals with a developmental disability or acquired brain disorder
and their families. Services provided through the Area Agency may Include community support
and Independent living; community participation and employment; family-centered early supports;
family support; in-home support; service coordination; and participant directed and managed
services.

This agreement includes funding that is shared among the agencies to provide assistance
to Area Agency through the system transition. By including these shared funds in the contracts,
the Department is able to distribute funds throughout developmental services system based on
individual and agency needs, as approved by the Department.

The Department will monitor contracted services through monthly reporting, annual file
reviews, and Governance audits.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, the Area Agency will not be
able to fully provide the function's of the Organized Health Care Delivery System operated by the
Department and as laid out in RSA 171-A. As a result, individuals with developmental disabilities
and acquired brain disorders and their families will not receive required and essential services.

Areas served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #84.181A, FAIN# H181A200127

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

espectfutly submitted.

Lo

hte

i^Ui)
. Weaver

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join contmunilieB and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Attachment A

Financial Details

05.95.93-930010.7013 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OP. HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL

SERV DIV OF. DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS. FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES (100% General Funds)

Northern Human Services (Vendor Code 177222-6004)

'  Fiscal Year '  Class'/Account "Class Title ■' Job Number Total >ynount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $367,683.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for program senrices 93007013 $367,683.00

Subtotal $735,366.00

05.95.93.930010.7100 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL
SERV DIV OF. DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS. FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES (100% General Funds)

Northem Human Services (Vendor Code 177222-6004)

Fiscal Year Class / Account .  Class Title 'i Job Number Total Amount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $0.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007013 $0.00

Subtotal $0.00

05.95.93.930010-3677 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL
SERV DIV OF. DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, EARLY INVERVENTION (100% General Funds)

Northern Human Services (Vendor Code 177222-6004)
Fiscal Year Class / Account ' Class Title Job Numtier Total Amount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007014 $76,618.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93007014 $76,618.00

Subtotal $153,636.00

05.95-93.930010.3674 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL
SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, INFANT - TODDLER PROGRAM PT-C (100% Federal Funds)

Northem Human Services (Vendor Code 177222-6004)
Fiscal Year 1  Class / Account Class Title Job Numtwr Total Amount

2024 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 93007852 $60,567.00
2025 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 93007852 $60,567.00

SubfOfa/ $121,134.00

05.95.93.930010.5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL
SERV DIV OF. DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, PROGRAM SUPPORT (100% General Funds)

Northem Human Services (Vendor Code 177222-6004)
Fiscal Year '  Class / Account Class Title' Job Number Total Amount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93005947 $0.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93005947 $0.00

Subtotal $0.00

05.95.93.930010.71000000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES. HHS:
DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS DIV, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES. DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES (100% General Funds)

Northem Human Services (Vendor Code 177222-6004)
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount -

2024 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93017100 $0.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93017100 $0.00
Subtotal $0.00

05-95-93-930010.70160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS:
DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS DIV, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, ACQUIRED BRAIN DISORDER SERVIC (100% General
Funds)

Northem Human Services (Vendor Code 177222-8004)
Fiscal Year Class / Account - Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93017016 $0.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for program services 93017016 $0.00

SubfOfa/ $0.00

Anachment A

Financial Detail
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Attachment A

Financial Details

Subtotal R1

Contract Funds
S1.010.136.00\

Funding Amounts Shared by all AA Vendors as follows;

Contingency Funds for Transition of BDS System Redesign

l}$-9$-93.930010-7100 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS; DEVELOPMENTAL
SERV Orv OP, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES (100% General Funds)

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class TiUe Job Number Total Amount

2024 102-500731 Payments to Providers $750,000.00

2025 102 - 500731 Payments to Providers $250,000.00

Subfoiaf $1,000,000.00

Total Contract

Funds wf

Contlnoancv

$2,010,138.00

Attachment A

Financial Detail
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DocuSign Envelope ID: BE109C64-ODD2-4039-B79F-F92D1ABD5098

Subject: Area Agency (SS-2024-DLTSS-01-AREAA-09)
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Depanmenl of Health and Human Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Northern Human Services

1.4 Contractor Address

87 Washington St., Conway, NH 03818

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-447-3347

1.6 Account Number

05-95-93-9300I0-7013

05-95-93-930010-7100

05-95-93-930010-3677

05-95-93-930010-3674

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2025

1.8 Price Limitation

$2,010,136

1.9 Contracting OfTicer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

l.ll Contractor Signature
OoeuSiontd by:

Sw/yOUAJ. P/i^/2023

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Suzanne Gaetjens-oleson

Chief Executive Officer

1.13 State Agency Signature
OoeuSlgnAd by:

UW ?^6/2023

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Melissa Hardy

Director, OLTSS

1.15 Approval by tFTcN.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
OocuSigtwd by:

By:

1.17 Approval t/'tTreTj^ernor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Initials
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DocuSign Envelope ID: BE109C64-ODD2-4039-B79F-F92D1ABD5098

2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
{"State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Ser\'ices provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee'
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall sur\'ive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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DocuSign Envelope ID; BE109C64-0DO2-4039-B79F-F92D1ABD5098

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of

.a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the dale of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor

shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished. '

10.2 Ail data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCOjNTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially ail
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Ser\'ices shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissioQsOf the

of 4

Contractor Initials

Date 5/28/2023



DociiSign Envelope ID; BE109C64-0DD2-4039-B79F-F92D1ABD5098

Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the Slate, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and >

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate{s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proofof Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
e.xclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Area Agency

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1,
2023 upon Governor and Council Approval ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability arid Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

SS-2024-DLTSS-01-AREAA-09 A-1.2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Area Agency

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must operate and maintain as a designated Area Agency (AA),
as defined in NH RSA 171-A:2, l-b, and ensure services are available in the
designated region, in accordance with NH Administrative Rule He-M 500,
Developmental Services, hereby referenced as He-M 500, PART 505,
Establishment and Operation of Area Agencies.

1.2. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to:

1.2.1. Days means calendar days, unless otherwise noted, excluding stale
and federal holidays.

1.2.2. Business hours means Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 4:30
PM.

1.2.3. State fiscal year (SFY) means July 1 through June 30.

1.2.4. Federal fiscal year (FFY) means October 1 through September 30.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor must provide services to individuals with a developmental
disability (DD) and/or an acquired brain disorder (ABD) and their families, in
order to promote the individual's personal development, independence, and
quality of life, in accordance with state and federal regulations, laws and rules,
as applicable, which include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. New Hampshire (NH) Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 171-A,
Services for the Developmentally Disabled;

2.1.2. NH RSA 171-B, Involuntary Admission for Persons found Not
Competent to Stand Trial;

2.1.3. NH RSA 137-K, Brain and Spinal Cord Injuries;

2.1.4. NH RSA 126-G, Family Support Services;

2.1.5. NH Administrative Rule Chapter He-M 500, Developmental Services,
hereby referenced as He-M 500;

2.1.6. NH Administrative Rule He-M 202 Rights Protection Procedures for
Developmental Services, hereby referenced as He-M 202;

2.1.7. NH Administrative Rule He-M 310 Rights of Persons Receiving
Developmental Services or Acquired Brain Disorder Services in the
Community, hereby referenced as He-M 310;

2.1.8. NH Administrative Rule He-M 1001 Certification StandanJg® for
Developmental Services Community Residences, hereby reter^^d

SS-2024-DLTSS-01-AREAA-09 B-2.0 Contractor Initials -^26/2023
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as He-M 1001;

2.1.9. NH Administrative Rule He-M 1201 Healthcare Coordination and

Administration of Medications, hereby referenced as He-M 1201;

2.1.10. 1915(c) Home and Community Based Services Waivers;

2.1.11. U.S. Department of Education, Office of Special Education Program
(OSEP) regulations, including, but not limited to the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Subchapter III. Infants and Toddlers
with Disabilities (Part C); and

2.1.12. The NH Department of Health and Human Services (Department)
procedures and policies regarding developmental disabilities and
acquired brain disorder services, as they are developed,
implemented, and amended.

2.2. The Contractor must accept applications from individuals, their guardians, or
representatives, in the Contractor's region, seeking services for;

2.2.1. Developmental Disabilities (DD);

2.2.2. Acquired Brain Disorder (ABD);

2.2.3. In-home Support (IHS); or

2.2.4. Family Centered Early Supports and Services (FCESS).

2.3. The Contractor must complete a comprehensive screening evaluation to
determine if an individual is eligible for:

2.3.1. Developmental Disability Services in accordance with He-M 500,
PART 503; or

2.3.2. Acquired Brain Disorder Services in accordance with He-M 500,-
PART 522.

2.4. The Contractor must assist all individuals determined eligible with accessing
and applying for community resources, services, and/or public programs
available to them.

2.5. If the individual is determined eligible for developmental disability and/or
acquired brain disorder services, the Contractor must submit a functional
screen, on a template provided by the Department, to the Department for
completion of the institutional Level of Care (LOC) for individuals who:

2.5.1. Are eligible and receiving Medicaid; and

2.5.2. Are interested in receiving services through either the In-Home
Support, Developmental Disabilities or the Acquired Brain Disorder
1915(c) Waivers, hereby referenced as 1915(c) Waivers.

SS-2024-DLTSS-01-AREAA-09 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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2.6. Thei Conlractpr must provide access to services in the individual's service
agreement (ISA) for eligible individuals only, ensuring the Department is under
no obligation to pay for services initiated without prior Department approval.

2.7. The; Contractor must provide information and assistance that enables
individuals and their families to make informed decisions about their long-term
services and supports.

2.8. The Contractor must network and partner with community organizations, with in
an effort to support inclusive community life and leverage natural resources,
services and supports.

2.9. The Contractor must enter and update the Department's Registry information,
into NHEasy, for all individuals seeking access to 1915 (c) Waiver services
within the next five (5) state fiscal years (SPY), in accordance with He-M 500,
PART 503, Allocation of Funds. The Contractor must include appropriate
services based on the functional screen, the ISA and SA and other service
needs for eligible individuals, requesting, or likely to need 1915 (c) Waiver
services. The Contractor must;

2.9.1i. Enter all required information into the Department's Registry to
document those needs for services; as outlined by the Department;

I  and

2.9.2' Update individual's service or other data or information in the
Department's Registry and NH Easy, as needed.

2.10. The Contractor must obtain approval from the Department prior to arranging for
an out-of-state placement for any individual seeking services in accordance with
the Department's Out of State policy.

2.11. The 'Contractor must provide Designated Area Agency Delivery System
(DAADS) functions and services to individuals with a developmental disability
and/or an acquired brain disorder as directed by the Department and in
accordance with Table 1 - DAADS Functions, below:

TABLE 1 - DAADS FUNCTIONS

1  ID Category Sub-function

RSA 171-A, He-M 503, He-M 524 and He-M 522~lntake for all Individuals

A1

RSA 171-A and He-M 503,
He-M 524 and He-M 522

Intake for all Individuals

Complete introductory meeting{s) to determine if He-M 503 or He-M 522
eligibility review will be pursued.

A2

RSA 171-A and He-M 503,
He-M 524 and He-M 522

Intake fof all Individuals

Complete assessments and gather information from existing assessments.
This function includes scheduling and facilitating all assessments needed
for RSA 171-A and He-M 522 eligibility. ,—os

1
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A3
RSA 171-Aand He-M 522

Intake for.all Individuals
Complete a clinical file review.

A4
RSA 171-Aand He-M 522

Intake for all Individuals

Within 21 days of application, based on an individual's needs, provide
preliminary recommendations for services in alignment with RSA 171-A and
He-M 522.

AS
RSA 171-A and He-M 522
Intake for all Individuals

Offer consultation and support to current and prospective Medicaid
beneficiaries.

A6
RSA 171-A Intake for all

Individuals

Make RSA 171-A eligibility determinations of either "Yes," "No," or
"Conditional."

A7
RSA 171-A and He-M 522

Intake for all Individuals
Manage cases of contested'eligibility as applicable.

Service Eligibility and Access Support for individuals eligible under He-M 503 and/or He-M 522

B1

Service Eligibility and
Access Support for RSA
171-Aand He-M 522 Eligible
Individuals

Inform the individual of service coordination options and direct the
individual to choose a service coordinator, including sharing information
when an individual changes service coordinators.

B2

Service Eligibility and
Access Support for RSA
171-A and He-M 522 Eligible
Individuals

Contribute to ISA development for individuals receiving waiver services
who are also receiving RSA 171-A and He-M 522 services.

83

Service Eligibility and
Access Support for RSA
171-A and He-M 522 Eligible
Individuals

When an individual changes service coordination organizations, the area
agency must support the individual's selection of a new service
coordination organization and ensure there is no gap in service
coordination.

B4

Service Eligibility and
Access Support for RSA
171-A and He-M 522 Eligible
Individuals

Complete Medicaid financial eligibility applications including a discussion of
HCBS waiver eligibility.

B5

Service Eligibility and
Access Support for He-M
503 Individuals

Complete conditional eligibility reviews.

Information, Education, Referrals

C1
Information, Education,

Referrals

For individuals found eligible under RSA 171-A and He-M 522, provide
objective information, advice and assistance that empowers people to
make informed decisions about their long-term services and supports.

C2
Information, Education,
Referrals

Network with community organizations and groups with the goal of
improving the community's understanding of the developmental disabilities
service system. Community organizations and groups include but are not
limited to local physician's offices, childcare resource and r^f^ral centers,
family resource centers, early support and services prodfamSj educational
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services, dental offices. CMHC's, pharmacies, diverse population outreach,
and law enforcement entities.

Registry Management for all Waiver Eligible Individuals who Request Services

D1

Registry Management for all
Waiver Eligible individuals
who Request Services

For every eligible individual requesting, or likely to need, waiver services
within 5 years, determine service needs and enter them into the Registry
using the online database.

D2

Registry Management for all
Waiver Eligible Individuals
who Request Services

Review and update the registry as needed. This must include updates for
service changes, date services needed, and projected start date.

D3

Registry Management for all
Waiver Eligible Individuals
who Request Services

For every individual requesting, or likely to need, waiver services within 12
months, complete the initial functional screen

Initiation of Waiver Services

E1 initiation of Waiver Services
After BDS approves Level of Care, submit service authorization for service
coordination.

E2 Initiation of Waiver Services
Facilitate initial service coordination selection process by providing
resources to select a service coordinator.

E3 Initiation of Waiver Services

For individuals that do not have a service coordinator, facilitate the initial

SIS assessment process. This must include providing information for the
participant and their family, completing scheduling, and ensuring that
results are-communicated.

Managing Transfers (Between Regions or Between Waivers)

F1

Managing Transfers
(Between Regions or Between
Waivers) •

Regional Transfer - Process incoming and outgoing transfers. Area
agencies are responsible for ensuring that there is not a gap in service
provision as a result of the transfer. If applicable, area agencies must
prepare needed documentation, including making updates in existing IT
systems.

F2

Managing Transfers
(Between Regions or Between
Waivers)

Waiver Transfer - Transition services from one waiver to another. This must

include initiating the initial functional screen for new waiver.

Utilization and Quallty.Review

G1
Utilization and Quality
Review

Monitor timeliness and completion of annual service agreement renewals
on a monthly basis.

G2*
Utilization and Quality
Review

'Complete service audits. The main-task of this work is to review and
monitor waiver services to ensure compliance with state and federal
requirements for a sample deemed adequate by CMS as reflected in the
approved waivers. BDS will distribute a list of files to be reviewed per
waiver per area agency to ensure conflict free reviews. These reviews will
include post payment reviews.

Northern Human Services Page 5 of 30 Date
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G3*
Utilization and Quality
Review

'Develop (or procure) and facilitate training and education dissemination
related to sentinel events and mortality trends as determined by BOS. Area
agencies will be responsible for delivering at least one training per state '
fiscal year quarter.

G4
Utilization and Quality
Review

Increase access to employment services as guided by trends identified by
BDS. Participate in the employment leadership committee.

G5
Utilization and Quality
Review

Coordinate and monitor the vendor network to support the needs of the
area agency catchment region. This includes managing and overseeing
submission of OOS service provision requests to BDS.

G6
Utilization and Quality
Review

Actively monitor current open capacity with support of BDS data. Identify
risk and solutions when full capacity approaches.

G7
Utilization and Quality
Review

Promote the development of new vendors to reduce any gaps in capacity.

G8'
Utilization and Quality
Review

'Report quarterly on service capacity to BDS to support vendor
management based on bidirectional data sharing.

G9
Utilization and Quality
Review

Communicate relevant system updates to providers, as needed. Provide
education and training for service providers, including service coordinators,
as needed.

G10*
Utilization and Quality
Review

'Complete informal investigations at the request of BDS. These
investigations do not include those pursuant to He-M 202. Examples
include, but are not limited to a service concern, complaint or a grievance.

Critical Incident Management

HI
Critical Incident

Management
Collect quarterly restraint and seclusion data.

H2
Critical Incident

Management
Finalize mortality reviews and submit to BDS. Finalization must include
collecting additional information as needed.

H3
Critical Incident

Management
Finalize sentinel event reports and submit to BDS. Finalization must include
collecting additional information as needed.

H4*
Critical Incident

Management

'Monitor follow up related to findings from formal complaint investigations.
Ensure that all recommendations in OCLS complaint investigation reports,
whether to the Area Agency or Service Providers, are implemented and
documented.

H5
Critical Incident

Management
Provide technical assistance to service coordinators when a service

coordinator reaches out in advance of a potential crisis.

H6
Critical Incident

Management
Operate a 24/7 on-call structure that supports critical incident assistance.
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H7
Critical Incident

Management

Provide coordination, logistical support, and subject matter expertise in
crisis mitigation situations. This includes supporting service coordinators to .
convene appropriate team members, providing input on next steps, and
providing ongoing monitoring as the crisis deescalates.

H8
Critical Incident

Management
Provide expedited intake supports to individuals that are in crisis but are not
part of the developmental services system.

H9
Critical Incident

Management

Facilitate strategy development and coordination meetings in collaboration
with BDS when a provider closure is imminent that will have impact on
service availability in an area agency's catchment region. This work will
include convening with service coordinators and Department staff to assess
the impact on service availability and to develop options for transfers and
additional capacity development.

Human Rights Committee

11 Human Rights Committee Maintain and facilitate a human rights committee.

12 Human Rights Committee
Monitor and approve all behavior plans to ensure alignment with the
individual service agreement. Evaluate the treatment and habilitation for all
individuals presented to Human Rights Committee.

13 Human Rights Committee Monitor the use of restrictive or intrusive interventions.

14 Human Rights Committee

Promote advocacy programs on behalf of individuals. At minimum, this
must include providing two trainings per year on advocacy and individual
rights. Each area agency must maintain and distribute a list of current
advocacy groups within the catchment area.

Risk Management Committee (State and Local)

J1
Risk Management
Committee (State and Local)

Facilitate initiation of the risk management evaluation process.

J2
Risk Management
Committee (State and Local)

Facilitate the identification of a clinical psychologist, licensed therapist, or
behavior consultant with Intensive Treatment Services (ITS) expertise.

J3
Risk Management
Committee (State and Local)

Receive and review risk management assessments completed by the local
risk management committee (or equivalent). Submit relevant referrals for
risk management plans to the State committee.

J4
Risk Management
Committee (State and Local)

Participate in multi-regional meetings to identify and resolve common
concems with ITS programs.

J5
Risk Management
Committee (State and Local)

Liaise with provider agencies to expand service delivery capacity.

J6
Risk Management
Committee (State and Local)

Monitor availability and capacity of qualified risk assessors and develop
network capacity plans to improve availability.
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J7
Risk Management
Committee (State and Local)

Review comprehensive evaluations (comprehensive risk assessment and
neuropsychological evaluations) and use evaluative takeaways to develop
next steps.

J8
Risk Management
Committee (State and Local)

Coordinate and facilitate Local Risk Management Committee at least
monthly (or more frequently as needed). Review risk assessments, risk
management plans and other instances with individuals in escalated
situations to mitigate risk for AA and client/community.

J9
Risk Management
Committee (State and Local)

Participate in Community of Practice meetings for Intensive Treatment
Services.

J10
Risk Management
Committee (State and Local)

Participate in the Statewide Risk Management Committee.

Health Risk Screening Tool (HRST) Support

K1 HRST Support Provide administrative support.

K2 HRST Support
Complete a clinical review for individuals with a score greater than or equal
to three (3).

K3 HRST Support Complete oversight of the frail and elderly list.

Guardianship

LI Guardianship
Provide representation and other supports for participants In cases of
complex contested guardianship.

L2 Guardianship
Complete the request for the establishment of a public guardian if a service
coordinator is not assigned.

Medication Administration

M1 Medication Administration Attend and participate in state medication committee meeting.

M2 Medication Administration Review med error occurrence report and compile regional data.

M3 Medication Administration
Deliver training to providers about medication administration trends as
determined by the State Medication Committee (and confirmed by BPS).

Surveys

N1 Surveys
Disseminate and coordinate annual National Core Indicator satisfaction

surveys, utilize data to identify trends.

N2 Surveys Review survey results to identify areas of quality improvement.

N3 Surveys
In partnership with BDS, distribute and review survey results to ensure
continuous quality improvement for our comprehensive service delivery
system.

Record. Retention
DS
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01 Record Retention

For RSA 171:A applicants, document all information used to determine
eligibility for services pursuant to He-M 503.05 and He-M 503.06, and He-M
522 inclusive of documentation of preliminary recommendations for
services.

02 Record Retention

Complete documentation to support the termination of services in
accordance with He-M 503 and 522, in instances when the individual elects
to revoke all services. This documentation must Include a letter to the
participant documenting the revocation of services and steps to pursue to
reengage with the service system. This responsibility does not apply to
single service terminations.

* Due to the transition of the Area Agency System, in order to ensure continued payment as detailed in Exhibit C,
Payment Terms, Section 7, Medicaid Administrative Rates for Designated Area Agency Delivery System (DAADS)
Functions and Intake & Eligibilit>', the Contractor must be in compliance with the items identified with an asterisk,
no later than January 1, 2024, or at a later date, as agreed upon by the Department.

3. Collaboration with Other Agencies and Systems

3.1. National Core Indicators

3.1.1. The Contractor must collaborate with the entity designated by the
Department to complete the National Core Indicators (NCI) annual
surveys, both electronically and in-person.

3.1.2. The Contractor must assist with the scheduling and facilitation of
interviews for individuals selected to participate in NCI surveys as
directed by the Department.

3.2. Community Mental Health Centers

3.2.1. The Contractor must enter into a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) with the Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) that serves
their local region to coordinate and facilitate processes that include:

3.2.1.1. Enrolling individuals for services who are dually eligible for
both organizations:

3.2.1.2. Ensuring transition-aged individuals are screened for the
presence of mental health and developmental supports, and
refer, link, and support transition plans for youth leaving
children's services and entering into adult services identified
during screening;

3.2.1.3. Following the "Protocol for Extended Department Stays for
Individuals served by Area Agency" issued December 1, 2017
by the Department, as implemented by the regional Area
Agency;

3.2.1.4. Participating in collaborative discharge planning me^QS to
assess individuals who are leaving New Hampshire H^^^al

Contractor InitialsSS-2024-DLTSS-01-AREAA-09 B-2.0
5/28/2023

Northern Human Services Page 9 of 30 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: BE109C64-0DD2-4039-B79F-F92D1ABD5098

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Area Agency

EXHIBIT 8

(NHH) and/or Hampstead Hospital and Residential Treatment
Facility (HHRTF) to identify and re-engage individuals with
both the CMHC and Area Agency representatives; and

3.2.1.5. Ensuring annual training is designed and completed for
intake, eligibility, and case management for dually diagnosed
individuals and that attendee's include intake clinicians, case-
managers, service coordinators and other frontline staff
identified by both CMHC's and Area Agencies. The Contractor
must ensure the training utilizes the Diagnostic Manual for
Intellectual Disability 2 that is specific to intellectual
disabilities, in conjunction with the DSM-5.

3.3. Regional Public Health Networks fRPHN)

3.3.1. The Contractor must collaborate with the RPHN that serves the region
to facilitate and coordinate processes that enable collaboration for:

'3.3.1.1. Participating in regional public health emergency planning
processes to develop and execute response and recovery
plans that include:

3.3.1.1.1. Strategies to ensure public health information is
communicated to the population served;

3.3.1.1.2. Strategies to meet the access and functional
needs of at-risk individuals who may be
disproportionately impacted by an emergency;

3.3.1.1.3. Strategies for accommodating individuals with
access and functional needs within regional
shelters serving the general population;

3.3.1.1.4. Strategies for accommodating individuals with
access and functional needs in order to dispense
medical countermeasures, which may include
vaccines or medications;

3.3.1:1.5. Strategies to coordinate with public health
partners to conduct health screenings and identify
medical, access, and functional needs, which

may include but are not limited to needs related
to:

3.3.1.1.5.1. Communication;

3.3.1.1.5.2. Maintaining health;

3.3.1.1.5.3. Independence;

SS-2024-DLTSS-01-AREAA-09 8-2.0 Conlraclor Initials ^
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3.3.1.1.5.4. Support;

3.3.1.1.5.5. Safety;

3.3.1.1.5.6. Self-determination; and

3.3.1.1.5.7. Transportation of individuals at
response facilities.

3.3.1.2. Promoting awareness of and access to public health, health
care, human services, mental and/or behavioral health, and
environmental health resources that help protect health during
emergencies.

3.3.1.3. Collaborating on trainings to support volunteer emergency
response personnel providing services to meet the access
and functional needs of individuals.

3.4. Employment Services Leadership Committee

3.4.1. The Contractor must provide representation on the Employment
Services Leadership Committee, in accordance with He-M 500, PART
518.

3.4.2. The Contractor must ensure the Area Agency Representative
communicates activities with service coordinators, employment
vendors and providers to ensure that they are knowledgeable of
current employment trends.

3.5. No Wrong Door System fNWD)

3.5.1. The Contractor must operate and maintain the Area Agency as a No
Wrong Door (NWD) Partner, creating linkages for individuals seeking
services and requiring intake, evaluation, and assessment as outlined
in HE-M 503 and He-M 522.

3.5.2. The Contractor must participate as a Partner under the NHCarePath
Model by operating as an information and referral Partner for
individuals who may require or may benefit from Department's
community Long-Term Supports and Services (LTSS) programing.

3.5.3. The Contractor must ensure that individuals connect to LTSS options
that may cover out of pocket costs through other community
resources in close coordination with other NHCarePath Partners

including but not limited to:

3.5.3.1. State Designated Aging and Disability Resource Center;

3.5.3.2. Community Mental Health Centers; and os

[
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3.5.3.3. The Department.

3.5.4. The Contractor must participate in up to two (2) State and up to four
(4) regional meetings for NHCarePath annually.

3.5.5. The Contractor must support the NHCarePath Assessment process to
provide referrals and linkage to necessary LTSS. The Contractor must
monitor the referral process to ensure a transition to the appropriate
agency when necessary.

3.5.6. The Contractor must support individuals and follow standardized
guidelines established by NHCarePath for providing preliminary
screening and referrals for LTSS.

3.5.7. The Contractor must utilize and distribute NHCarePath outreach,
education, and awareness materials to potential users of
NHCarePath.

4. File Reviews and Audits

4.1. Service File Reviews

4.1.1. The Contractor must conduct annual Service File Reviews of the
1915(c) Waivers, which include service and post payment reviews, as
required by the Department to ensure:

4.1.1.1. Medicaid payments align with attendance and/or service
provision records indicating date(s) of service, units of
service, and service provider.

4.1.1.2. Required contact notes and/or progress notes are complete.

4.1.1.3. Required staff and provider qualifications are in place,
including, but not limited to:

4.1.1.3.1. Driving records.

4.1.1.3.2. Background checks.

4.1.1.3.3. Office of Inspector General (GIG) database
checks.

4.1.1.3.4. Training requirements.

4.1.1.3.5. Service agreements, required assessments, and
agency oversight relative to service provision are
in place.

4.2. Governance Audit

4.2.1. The Contractor must participate in an annual Governance Audrt^-os
conducted by the Department, to determine compliance with
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correlating New Hampshire Administrative rules and state statutes
relative to areas that include but are not limited to:

4.2.1.1. Current Board of Directors (BOD) composition, policies,
procedures, bylaws, and meeting minutes.

4.2.1.2. Executive Director Qualifications.

4.2.1.3. Area and/or Strategic Plan "development and ongoing
assessment.

4.2.1.4. The inclusion of employment goals within the Area Agency's
Strategic Plan.

4.2.1.5. Human Rights Committee (HRC) composition, minutes,
policies and documentation of policy compliance.

4.2.1.6. Communication strategy.

4.2.1.7. Quality assurance activities and training.

4.2.1.8. Subcontracting agreements.

4.2.1.9. Plan of correction from last redesignalion or Governance
Audit, if applicable.

4.2.1.10. Sentinel event policy and documentation.

4.2.1.11. Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the local CMHC.

4.2.1.12. Limited English Proficiency (LEP) policy.

4.2.1.13. Family Support Council (FSC) composition, policies and
procedures per He-M 519.05.

4.2.1.14. Formal agreement between the Contractor and the FSC per
He-M 519.05(c)(4).

4.2.1.15. Family Support Coordinator and/or Director job description
and resume(s) per He-M 519.06.

4.3. Redesiqnation Review

4.3.1. The Contractor must participate in a Redesignation Review as
required and in accordance with He-M 500, Part 505, Redesignation.

4.3.2. The Contractor must schedule time for the Department to present
information to Contractor's Board of Directors relative to areas that

include, but are not limited to:

4.3.2.1. Compliance with reporting requirements per this contract.

4.3.2.2. Governance Audit. f
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4.3.2.3. Financial Condition with five (5)-year trend analysis.

4.3.2.4. Compliance with Family Centered Early Supports and Service
Requirements, in accordance with He-M 510.

4.3.2.5. Compliance with the provision and billing of CMS approved
Medicaid Administrative claims

4.3.2.6. Compliance with billing and documentation for services not
directly billed to Medicaid.

4.3.2.7. Compliance with Medication Administration and Healthcare
Coordination requirements.

4.3.2.8. Compliance with conducting Service File Audits.

4.3.2.9. Summary of stakeholder engagement during the
redesignation process.

4.3.2.10. Plan of correction from last redesignation, if applicable.

5. Risk Assessment Funding for Service Planning

5.1. The Contractor must coordinate risk assessments and risk management plans
related to funding for service planning.

6. Family-Centered Early Supports and Services

6.1. The Contractor must provide high-quality Family Centered Early Supports and
Services (FCESS) in accordance with:

6.1.1. New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 500, Part 510, Family
Centered Early Supports and Services, herein referred to as He-M
500, Part 510; ■ '

6.1.2. The U.S. Department of Education, Office of Special Education
Program (OSEP) regulations, including, but not limited to the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Subchapter III,
Infants and Toddlers with Disabilities (Part C); and

6.1.3. FCESS current guidance documents, as provided and updated by the
Department.

6.2. The Contractor must accept referrals from individuals seeking FCESS in
accordance with He-M 500 PART 510.

6.3. The Contractor must conduct a multidisciplinary evaluation to determine a
child's eligibility for FCESS in accordance with He-M 500 PART 510.

6.4. The Contractor must ensure services for each child and their family are
individualized, family centered and provided to all eligible childjieii in
accordance with their Individualized Family Support Plan (IFSP) as deieggj^d
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. by the IFSPTeam in accordance with He-M 500, Part He-M 510.07 (c).

6.5. The Contractor must ensure each child's IFSP is updated annually.

6.6. The Contractor must ensure that children found eligible for FCESS and their
families are provided with access to Family Support, as needed, in accordance
with He-M 519.

6.7. The Contractor must ensure FCESS are provided within the following required
timeframes:

6.7.1. No more than 45 days between receipt of referral and signed
Individualized Family Support Plan (IFSP); and

6.7.2. All services start no later than the projected start date agreed upon
by the IFSP team, which includes the family, and documented in the
IFSP.

6.8. The Contractor must collaborate with external professionals, as needed, to
meet each child's needs as identified in the IFSP.

6.9. The Contractor must provide services in each child's natural environment as
defined by OSEP and He-M 510.

6.10. The Contractor must collect all FCESS required information in a Department
approved format. The Contractor must:

6.10.1. Ensure all FCESS data is accurate and documented at a minimum of
every 30 days; and

6.10.2. Provide additional data to the Department as requested by the
Department.

6.11. The Contractor must ensure FCESS program staff comply with current
professional development standards as defined by the Department's
monitoring process and written guidance. The Contractor must ensure all
FCESS program staff:

6.11.1. Complete the following trainings within one (1) year of their date of
hire:

6.11.1.1. Orientation program:

6.11.1.2. Culturally Competent services; and

6.11.1.3. Adult Learning Strategies.

6.11.2. Have current individualized professional development plans, which
are updated annually.

6.11.3. Have training in procedural safeguards annually.

SS-2024-DLTSS-01-AREAA-09 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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6.11.4., Maintain licensure or certification as appropriate for their professional
discipline.

6.12. The Contractor must ensure that Service Coordinators and Service Providers,
who provide direct services to children and families, are up to date on best- and
evidence-informed practices.

6.13. The Contractor must ensure FCESS training funds are equitably distributed
across all FCESS programs within their region.

6.14. The Contractor must submit necessary information as part of the Department's
annual FCESS Program Monitoring to verify utilization of training funds, as
requested by the Department.

7. Family Support Council and Non-Medicaid Respite

7.1. The Contractor must provide family support and respite services as defined by
and in accordance with:

7.1.1. He-M 500, Part 519, Family Support Services; and

7.1.2. He-M 500, Part 513, Respite Services.

7.2. The Contractor must provide a wide range of activities that assist families in
developing and maximizing the families' abilities to care for individuals and
meet their needs in a flexible manner.

7.3. The Contractor must collect information related to Family Support and non-
Medicaid Respite Services, including, but not limited to:

7.3.1. Unduplicated number of families served.

7.3.2. Unduplicated number of families provided with respite services.

7.3.3. Unduplicated number of families participating in Family Support
Council events, activities and/or receiving Family Support Council
funds.

7.4. The Contractor must adhere to the Principles of Family Support Practice as
identified in the National Family Support Network, Standards of Quality for
Family Strengthening & Support, which include:

7.4.1. Staff and families work together in relationships based on equality and
respect;

7.4.2. Staff enhances families' capacity to support the growth and
development of all family members - adults, youth, and children;

7.4.3. Families are resources to their own members, to other families, to
programs, and to communities;
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7.4.4. Programs affirm and strengthen families' cultural, racial, and linguistic
identities and enhance their ability to function in a multicultural
society;

7.4.5. Programs are embedded in their communities and contribute to the
community-building process;

7.4.6. Programs advocate with families for services and systems that are
fair, responsive, and accountable to the families, served;

7.4.7. Practitioners work with families to mobilize formal and informal

resources to support family development;

7.4.8. Programs are flexible and continually responsive to emerging family
and community issues; and

7.4.9. Principles of family support are modeled in all program activities,
including planning, governance, and administration.

7.5. The Contractor must employee at least one (1) full-time Family Support
Coordinator in accordance with He-M 519.06. The Contractor must ensure;

7.5.1. The Family Support Coordinator performs all duties in their job
description including, at a minimum, those identified in He-M
519.06(c)(1-8).

7.5.2. All family support staff perform all requirements including, but not
limited to those identified in He-M 519.06(d).

7.6. The Contractor must collaborate with and promote networking and community
building with other systems of family support including, but not limited:

7.6.1. Bureau of Family Centered Services (BFCS) Health Care
Coordination.

7.6.2. Family Resource Centers.

7.6.3. Child Care and Early Learning Environments.

7.6.4. Other community agencies in the region.

7.7. The Contractor must provide the Regional Family Support Council with funding,
referred to as "Family Support Council funds," from this Contract for the
purposes of providing funding for supports and services for the individuals and
their families in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M
519.04(c) and as detailed in Exhibit C, Payment Terms.

7.8. The Contractor must ensure the distribution of Family Support Council funds,
following approval by the Family Support Council.

7.9. The Contractor must ensure that Family Support Council funds are use Sl^jjie
SS-2024-DLTSS-01-AREAA-09 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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purposes outlined in He-M 519 (c).

8. Reporting

8.1. The Contractor must enter all service activity, for individuals over the age of
three (3) years, into the Department-approved database once per month, at a
minimum. The Contractor must ensure data includes:

8.1.1. Complete intake processing:

8.1.2. A functional screen for a Level of Care (LOC) assessment for
application for Waiver services;

8.1.3. Dates and types of Waiver services requested;

8.1.4. Indication of when an individual received services, if services are non-

billable; and

8.1.5. Accurate and non-duplicative data.

8.1.6. Other information as requested and required by the Department.

8.2. The Contractor must notify the Department within 30 calendar days after an
individual exits the service delivery system. The Contractor must ensure
notification includes, but is not limited to:

8.2.1. Name of the individual.

8.2.2. Last date that the individual received services.

8.2.3. Services made available to the individual.

8.2.4. Services actually provided to the individual.

8.2.5. Reasons the individual has exited the service delivery system.

8.3. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department, as requested
by the Department, with advance notice of at least one (1) business day.

8.4. The Department may withhold, in whole or in part, any contract payment for the
ensuing contract period until the Contractor submits, to the Department's
satisfaction, required monthly compliance reports.

8.5. DAADS Reporting

8.5.1. The Contractor must complete and submit monthly DAADS
information to the Department as directed by the Department.

8.6. Family Support Services and non-Medicaid Respite Services Reporting

8.6.1. The Contractor must submit monthly Family Support and Respite .
information to the Department, in a format approved by the
Department, that includes, but is not limited to: '—
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8.6.1.1. Unduplicated number of families served.

8.6.1.2. Unduplicated number of families provided with non-Medicaid
respite services.

8.6.1.3. Unduplicated number of families participating in Family
Support Council events, activities and/or receiving Family
Support Council funds.

8.6.2. The Contractor must provide the Department with aggregate, non-
identifiable data relative to Family Support Services and Respite
Services.

8.6.3. The Contractor must ensure aggregate and de-identified data
excludes information that would allow for the constructive

Identification of any individual, meaning that there is no.reasonable
basis to believe that the data could be used, alone or in combination
with other reasonably available information, by an anticipated
recipient to identify an individual who is a subject of the information.

8.7. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

9. Performance Measures

9.1. Contract performance will be measured through the review of monthly reports,
required audits, performance reviews, as applicable, and regularly scheduled
meetings with the Department to evaluate the quality, and efficacy of services
provided to individuals with a developmental disability and/or an acquired brain
disorder which promote the individual's personal development, independence,
and quality of<life.

9.2. Performance Measures specific to Familv Suooort Services and Respite

Services

9.2.1. The Contractor shall identify a baseline number of families able to
access respite when needed; in SFY 2024 and Increase this
percentage in SFY 2025.

9.2.2. The Contractor must ensure 75% of families report satisfaction with
family support services, when completing an annual satisfaction
survey.

10. Background Checks

10.1. The Contractor must complete criminal background checks for all staff engaged
in supporting this contract as well as Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services
(BEAS) and Division of Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) state r^istry
checks for all staff working directly with individuals, prior to the staff t
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work, in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 500; as
directed by any federal or state laws, additional background checks may be
required.

10.2. The Contractor must provide an attestation to the Department, within 60 days
of the contract effective date, that states all contract workforce members
engaged in this contract have successfully passed their criminal background
check and Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services (SEAS) and Division of
Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) state registry checks and that if it is
discovered a Contractor workforce member is no longer eligible to engage in
contract support based upon the background checks requirement they will
immediately remove that individual from providing services under this
Agreement and inform the Department.

11.Continuity of Operations Planning (COOP)

11.1. Contractor must provide the Department with a digital Continuity of Operations
Plan (COOP) draft for the Department's review and approval. The COOP must
demonstrate that the Contractor can continue their responsibilities under this
Agreement during a wide range of emergencies (how it will proceed during an
emergency). The Contractor must work with the Department to mitigate any
gaps it identifies within the draft COOP. Once the Department approves the
draft, the Contractor must provide the Department with a final digital copy.
Contractor must update the COOP as needed or at the request of the
Department throughout the term of this Contract.

12. Disaster Recovery Plan

12.1. Contractor must provide the Department with a digital Disaster Recovery Plan
(DRP) draft for the Department's review and approval. The DRP must describe
the measures the Contractor takes in response to an event that requires the
DRP to be enacted, and return to safe, normal operations as quickly as
possible. The Contractor must work with the Department to mitigate any gaps
it identifies within the draft DRP. Once the Department approves the draft, the
Contractor must provide the Department with a final digital copy. Contractor
must update the DRP as needed or at the request of the Department
throughout the term of this Contract.

13.Privacy Impact Assessment

13.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in
conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the Contractor, if
Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected, used, accessed, shared,
or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must provide the De^^jpa^gnt
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access to applicable systems and documentation sufficient to allow the
Department to assess, at minimum, the following:

13.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

13.1.2. Who will have access to Pll;

13.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

13.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

13.1.5. Privacy practices.

13.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are either
significant process changes or new technologies impacting the collection,
processing or storage of Pll.

14. State Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

14.1. If the Contractor's End Users are authorized by the Department's Information
Security Office to use a Department issued device (e.g. computer, tablet,
mobile telephone) or access the State network in the fulfilment of this
Agreement, the Contractor must:

14.1.1. Sign and abide by applicable Department and New Hampshire
Department of Information Technology (NH DolT) use agreements,
policies, standards, procedures and guidelines, and complete
applicable trainings as required;

14.1.2. Use the information that they have permission to access solely for
conducting official Department business and agree that all other use
or access is strictly forbidden including, but not limited, to personal or
other private and non-Department use, and that at no time must they
access or attempt to access information without having the express
authority of the Department to do so;

14.1.3. Not access or attempt to access information in a manner inconsistent
with the approved policies, procedures, and/or agreement relating to
system entry/access;

14.1.4. Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse engineer,
rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or being evaluated by the
Department, and at all limes must use utmost care to protect and
keep such software strictly confidential in accordance with the license
or any other agreement executed by the Department;

14.1.5. Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s) authorized by the
Department's Information Security Office or designee;
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14.1.6. Only install authorized software on any Department equipment
■  unless authorized by the Department's Information Security Office or
designee;

14.1.7. Agree that email and other electronic communication messages
created, sent, and received on a Department-issued email system
are the property of the Department of New Hampshire and to be used
for business purposes only. Email is defined as "internal email '
systems" or "Department-funded email systems."

14.1.6. Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH DolT
policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

14.1.9. Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:

14.1.10.To only use a Department email address assigned to them with a
affiliate.DHHS.NH.Gov".

14.1.11. Include in the signature lines information identifying the End User as
a non-Department workforce member; and

14.1.12. Ensure the following confidentiality notice is embedded underneath
the signature line:

14.1.13. CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: "This message may contain
information that is privileged and confidential and is intended only for
the use of the individuals) to whom it is addressed. If you receive
this message in error, please notify the sender immediately, delete
this electronic message and any attachments from your system, and
do not share any information viewed with anyone. Thank you for
your cooperation."

14.1.14. Contractor End Users with a Department issued email, access or
potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a workspace in a
Department building/facility, must:

14.1.15. Complete the Department's Annual Information Security &
Compliance Awareness Training prior to accessing, viewing,
handling, hearing, or transmitting Department Data or Confidential
Data.

14.1.16. Sign the Department's Business Use and Confidentiality Agreement
and Asset Use Agreement, and the NH DolT Department wide
Computer Use Agreement upon execution of the awarded Contract
and annually throughout the Contract term.
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14.1.17. Agree End User's will only access the Department' intranet to view
the Department's Policies and Procedures and Information Security
webpages.

14.1.18. Agree, if any End User Is found to be in violation of any of the above-
Department terms and conditions of the Contract, said End User may
face removal from the Contract, and/or criminal and/or civil
prosecution, if the act constitutes a violation of law.

14.1.19. Notify the State a minimum of three (3) business days prior to any
upcoming transfers or terminations of End Users who possess State
credentials and/or badges or who have system privileges. If End
Users who possess State credentials and/or badges or who have
system privileges resign or are dismissed without advance notice, the
Contractor agrees to notify the State's Information Security Office or
designee immediately

15. Website and Social Media

15.1. The Contractor must work with the Department's Communications Bureau to
ensure that any social media or website desigried, created, or managed on
behalf of the Department meets all Department and NH DolT website and
social media requirements and policies.

15.2. The Contractor agrees that Protected Health Information (PHI), Personally
Identifiable Information (Pll), or other Confidential Information solicited either
by social media or the website that is maintained, stored or captured must not
be further disclosed unless expressly provided in the Contract. The solicitation
or disclosure of PHI, Pll, or other Confidential Information is subject to Exhibit
K: Department Information Security Requirements and Exhibit I: DHHS
Business Associate Agreement and all applicable state and federal law, rules,
and agreements. Unless specifically required by the Contract and unless clear
notice is provided to users of the website or social media, the Contractor agrees
that site visitation must not be tracked, disclosed or used for website or social
media analytics or marketing.

16. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

16.1. General Requirements

16.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Contract the
Parties agree to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth
secure transition of the Services from the Contractor to the

Department and, if applicable, the Contractor engaged by the
Department to assume the Services previously performed by the
Contractor for this section the new Contractor shall be knowrva&s
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"Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or
unless otherwise specified by the Department, the Contractor must
begin working with the Department and If applicable, the new
Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan (DTP). The Department
shall provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

16.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient,
in connection with the transition from the performance of Services by
the Contractor and its End Users to the performance of such
Services. This may include assistance with the secure transfer of •
records (electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such Service from
the hardware, software, network and telecommunications equipment
and internet-related information technology infrastructure ("Internal
IT Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the
Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any third-party
consultants engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition
Services.

16.1.3. If a system, database, hardware,.software, and/or software licenses
(Tools) was purchased or created utilizing state funds (people or
money) to manage, track, and/or store Department Data in
relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried and
returned to the Department, along with the inventory document,
once transition of Department Data is complete.

16.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor
and its End Users shall be provided to the Department and if
applicable the Recipient in a timely manner. Any such Transition
Services shall be deemed to be Services for purposes of this
Contract. .

16.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the Contract,
the Contractor agrees that the Contract Information Security
Requirements, and if applicable, the Department's Business
Associate Agreement terms and conditions remain in effect until the
Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Department.

16.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department Data
and the destruction or Transition of said data is not feasible, the

Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements prior to
destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of Exhibit K: DHHS
Information Security Requirements. d,
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16.2. ComDietion of Transition Services

16.2.1. Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed completed {and
the Transition process finalized) at the end of 15 business days after
the product, resulting from the Service, is delivered to the
Department and/or the Recipient in accordance with the mutually
agreed upon Transition plan, unless within said 15 business day
term the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue requiring
additional time to complete said product.

16.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the Contractor
will have 30 days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions of
Exhibit K; DHHS Information Security Requirements.

16.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

16.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the
Transition Service, the Department shall notify the Contractor, by
email, stating the reason for the lack of satisfaction within 15
business days of the final product or at any time during the data
Transition process. The Parties shall discuss the actions to be taken
to resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not
reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate
actions in accordance with the Contract.

17.Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

17.1. The Contractor must submit the following financial statements to the
Department on a monthly basis, within thirty (30) calendar days after the end
of each month:

17.1.1. Balance Sheet.

17.1.2. Profit and Loss Statement for the Contractor's entire organization
that includes:

17.1.2.1. All revenue"sources and expenditures: and

17.1.2.2. A budget column allowing for budget to actual analysis.

17.1.3. Profit and Loss Statement for the Program funded under this
Agreement that includes:

17.1.3.1. All revenue sources and all related expenditures for the
Program; and

17.1.3.2. A budget column allowing for budget to actual analysis.

17.1.3.3. Cash Flow Statement. r-os
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17.2. The Contractor must ensure all financial statements are prepared based on the
accrual method of accounting and include all the Contractor's total revenues
and expenditures, whether or not generated by or resulting from funds provided
pursuant to this Agreement.

17.3. The Contractor's fiscal integrity will be evaluated by the Department using the
following Formulas and Performance Standards:

17.3.1. Davs of Cash on Hand:

17.3.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be
covered by the unrestricted cash on hand.

17.3.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments divided by total operating expenditures, less
depreciation/amortization and in-kind plus principal
payments on debt divided by days in the reporting period.
The short-term investments as used above must mature

within three (3) months and should not include common
stock.

17.3.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough
cash and cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a
minimum of thirty (30) calendar days with no variance
allowed.

17.3.2. Current Ratio:

17.3.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current
assets available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

17.3.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

17.3.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

17.3.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

17.3.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to
cover the cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

17.3.3.2. Definition: The ratio of net income to the year to date debt
service.

17.3.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus depreciation/amortization
expense plus interest expense divided by year to date debt
service (principal and interest) over the next twelve (12)
months. (—
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17.3.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's monthly financial
statements identifying current portion of long-term debt
payments (principal and interest).

17.3.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

17.3.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

17.3.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is ah indication of the Contractor's

ability to cover its liabilities.

17.3.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total

assets.

17.3.4:3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities)
divided by total assets.

17.3.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's monthly financial
statements.

17.3.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum ratio of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

17.4. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

17.4.1. The Days of Cash on Hand Performance Standard and the Current
Ratio Performance Standard for two consecutive months; or

17.4.2. Three or more of any of the Performance Standards for one month,
or any one Performance Standard for three consecutive months,
then

17.4.3. The Contractor must:

17.4.3.1. Meet with Department staff to explain the reasons that the
Contractor has not met the standards; and/or

17.4.3.2. Submit a comprehensive corrective action plan within
thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of notice from the
Department.

17.5. The Contractor must update and submit the corrective action plan to the
Department, at least every thirty (30) calendar days, until compliance is
achieved. The Contractor must:

17.5.1. Provide additional information to ensure continued access to

services as requested by the Department and ensure requested
information is submitted to the Departrtient in a timeframe agreed
upon by both parties. /—
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17.6. The Contractor must inform the Department by phone and by email within five
(5) calendar days of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or likely
litigation, investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may reasonably be
considered to have a material financial impact on and/or materially impact or
impair the ability of the Contractor to perform under this Agreement with the
Department.

18.Exhibits Incorporated

18.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Infohmation (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

18.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

18.3. The Contractor'must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

19.Additional Terms

19.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Leoislative Chances

19.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an Impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

19.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate

Programs and Services

19.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within 45 days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency: individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who

have speech challenges.

19.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

19.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performanceT)f®the
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services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

19.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

19.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

19.3.3.1. Brochures.

19.3.3.2. Resource directories.

19.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

19.3.3.4. Posters.

19.3.3.5. Reports.

19.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

19.4. Ooeration of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

19.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulatioris.

,  OS
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20.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

20.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income
received or collected by the Contractor.

20.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and
other records requested or required by the Department.

20.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

20.3. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department
retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

•OS
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 6.03% Federal Funds from Special Education Grants for Infants
and Toddlers/Families as awarded on July 1, 2020, by the United
States Department of Education, Office of Special Education and
Rehabilitative Services. CFDA #84.181A. FAIN# H181A200127.

1.2. 93.97% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Funds must be used in accordance with the provisions of the specified CFDA
numbers, above.

4. Billing for Services Covered Under Medicaid

4.1. The parties acknowledge that the Contractor must bill certain Medicaid
qualified services, described in this Agreement, through the Department-
approved Medicaid billing process external to this Agreement, for
Medicaid recipients served under this Agreement.

4.2. Medicaid funding is separate and apart from the funding sources
provided under this Agreement, as stated in Section 1, above, in this
Exhibit C. As such, there can be no transfers between Medicaid funding
and Contract funding without the appropriate Department approvals,
according to Federal and State laws, rules, or regulations.

4.3. During the transiton period towards full compliance with direct bill
requirements, in order to ensure access to services, the Contractor with
Department approval, may continue to bill for Medicaid qualified services
for those organizations that may not be fully enrolled as a provider. The
Contractor shall pass the claim amounts received for Medicaid qualified
services, less a Department approved fee, to the provider. Supporting
documentation of the pass through disbursement may be requested at
the discretion of the Department.

5. Payment Terms Respective to Area Agency Services

5.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance
with the approved line items as specified in Exhibit C-1 SFY24 Regional
FCESS Training Budget through Exhibit C-12, General Funds Budget.

5.2. Services under this section include:
DS
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5.2.1. Regional FCESS Training:

5.2.1.1. The Contractor agrees that Family Centered Early
Supports and Services (FCESS) training funds are
equitablely distributed across all programs to assure that
FCESS Service Coordinators and Service Providers are

current on best- and evidence-informed practices in
accordance with Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 6,
Family Centered Early Supports and Services.

5.2.1.2. The Contractor agrees utilization of funds will be verified
as a part of annual FCESS program monitoring.

5.2.2. FCESS State Early Intervention and Federal Part C Funding:

5.2.2.1. The Contractor must ensure private insurance, local and
state funds, are billed in accordance with He-M 500, Part
510.14, Utilization of Public and Private Insurance. Part
C federal funds follow Medicaid in accordance with CFR

§303.510 Payer of Last Resort.

5.2.2.2. The Contractor must ensure Part C federal funds are

used only for direct services in accordance with CFR
§303.510 and under the following conditions:

5.2.2.2.1. Services are determined necessary for a
specific infant or toddler with a disability: and

5.2.2.2.2. Services are not covered by any other
Federal, State, local, or private source.

5.2.2.3. The Contractor must identify other local funds to support
the FCESS program and services provided to infants and
toddlers, including, but not limited to:

5.2.2.3.1. Grant opportunities.

5.2.2.3.2. Fundraising opportunities and activities.

5.2.2.3.3. Donations.

5.2.2.4. In addition to the items outlined above, the Contractor's

invoice shall be net any other revenue received towards
the services billed in fulfillment of FCESS State Early
Intervention and Federal Part C Funding aspect of this
agreement.

5.2.3. Family Centered Early Supports and Services: and

5.2.3.1. The Contractor must ensure Family Centered Early
Supports and Services (FCESS) Supplemental Services
Funding (SSF) is distributed across all prog
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assure each local program has revenue to supplement
increased cost of services identified in Exhibit B Scope
of Services Section 6, Family Centered Early Supports
and Services.

5.2.3.2. Utilization of funds will be verified as a part of annual
FCESS program monitoring.

5.2.4. Familv Support Council and Non-Medicaid Respite

5.2.4.1. The Contractor must ensure approved supports and
services are provided to individuals and their families in
accordance with Exhibit B Scope of Services, Section 7,
Family Support Council and Non-Medicaid Respite.

5.2.4.2. Allowable uses of Family Support Council funds are
limited to direct support to families, in accordance with
He-M 519.04 and 519.06, which include the following;

5.2.4.2.1. Assistance related to crisis

intervention/stabilization;

5.2.4.2.2. Family networking events held by the council;

5.2.4.2.3. Costs associated with families' attendance at

Family Support Council meetings such as
parent stipends and refreshrpents;

5.2.4.2.4. Respite care not covered by Medicaid;

5.2.4.2.5. Environmental modifications;

5.2.4.2.6. Inclusive social and recreational

opportunities for the individual:

5.2.4.2.7. Families' participation in conferences and
workshops as requested;

5.2.4.2.8. Financial assistance provided that is related
to supporting a family to care of an individual
member in the family home; and

5.2.4.2.9. Family Support Coordinator salary or a
portion thereof.

5.3. Payment Methodology for Services that are paid for with State General
Funds and not for Services outlined in Section 5.2, of this Exhibit C:

5.3.1. Services meeting this criteria include, but are not limited to:

5.3.1.1. Family Support Case Management Staff salaries and
fringe benefits.

OS
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5.3.1.2. Travel costs associated with attending monthly Family
Support Coordinators meetings with the Department

5.3.1.3. Training and conference attendance of family support
staff.

5.3.1.4. Costs associated with networking and community
building with other systems of family support.

5.3.1.5. Background checks for family support staff.

5.3.1.6. Costs associated with producing materials such as
brochures, resource directories and posters that
promote services.

5.3.1.7. Client services/expenses not covered by Medicaid,
including, but not limited to:

5.3.1.7.1. Evaluations.

5.3.1.7.2. Emergency medications.

5.3.1.7.3. Asessments.

5.3.1.8. Other expenses agreed to by the Department via the pre-
approval process outlined in Section 5.4.

5.4. The Contractor will be eligible to receive payments to address other costs
in the fulfillment of this agreement at the Department's discretion. The
Contractor must obtain pre-approval for the expenses via a form of
submission satisfactory to the Department with applicable justifications.

5.5. The Department may withhold, in whole or in part, any contract payment
for the ensuing contract period:

5.5.1. Until the Contractor submits programmatic and financial resports
identified in Exhibit B to the Department's satisfaction. Summary
of Revenues and Expenditures and Balance Sheet reports must
be based on the accrual method of accounting and include the
Contractor's total revenue and expenditures, whether or not
generated by, or resulting from, State funding.

5.5.2. Until the Contractor submits, to the Department's satisfaction, a
plan of action to correct material findings noted in a Department
Financial Review, in Exhibit B, Section 17.

5.5.3. If routine Department monitoring, a Quality Assurance Survey, a
Program Certification Review, or Department Financial Reviews
find corrective actions for previous site surveys or financial
reviews have not been implemented in accordance with the
Contractor's Correction Action Plan(s) or to the Department's
satisfaction. os
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5.6. The Contractor must submit to the Department, within the timelienes
established by the Department, any and all reports required by the
Department on State-funded on Medicaid-funded individuals, in
accordance with Paragraph 9 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement and in a manner and form acceptable to the Department. The
Contractor must ensure reports include;

5.6.1. Program volume and outcome data;

5.6.2. Individual demographic data;

5.6.3. Individual funding data;

5.6.4. Individual clinical data;

5.6.5. Needs data;

5.6.6. Program plan data; and

5.6.7. Individual activity data.

5.7. The Contractor must submit budgets for approval, in a form satisfactory
to the Department, no later than 30 days from the contract Effective Date,
which shall be retained by the Department. The Contractor must submit
budgets as follows:

5.7.1. One (1) budget that specifies expenses for the period from July
1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, as follows:

5.7.1.1. Exhibit C-1, SFY24 FCESS Training Budget;

5.7.1.2. Exhibit C-2, SFY24 FCESS El Programming Budget;

5.7.1.3. Exhibit C-3, SFY24 Part C Funding Budget;

5.7.1.4. Exhibit C-4, SFY24 FCESS Supplemental Services
Budget;

5.7.1.5. Exhibit C-5, SFY24 Family Support Council and Non-
Medicaid Respite Budget; and

5.7.1.6. Exhibit C-6, SFY24 General Funds'Budget.

5.8. The Contractor must submit budgets for approval, in a form satisfactory
to the Department, no later than 30 days from the contract Effective Date,
which shall be retained by the Department. The Contractor must submit
budgets as follows:

5.8.1. One (1) budget that specifies expenses for the period from July
1, 2024 through June 30, 2025, as follows:

5.8.1.1. Exhibit C-7, SFY25 FCESS Training Budget;

5.8.1.2. Exhibit C-8, SFY25 FCESS El Programming Budget;

5.8.1.3. Exhibit C-9, SFY25 Part C Funding Budget; (
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5.8.1.4. Exhibit C-10, SFY25 FCESS Supplemental Services
Budget;

5.8.1.5. Exhibit C-11, SFY25 Family Support Council and Non-
Medicaid Respite Budget; and

5.8.1.6. Exhibit C-12, SFY25 General Funds Budget.

5.9. The Department shall not make payments to the Contractor without an
approved, associated budget, as detailed in Sections 5.7 and 5.8 above.

5.10. The Contractor must submit an invoice for the services identified in

Section 5.2, with supporting documentation to the Department no later
than the 15"^ working day of the month following the month in which the
services were provided. The Contractor must ensure each invoice:

5.10.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon
registering with New Hampshire Department of Administrative
Services.

5.10.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable
to the Department.

5.10.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs Incurred in
the previous month.

5.10.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each
invoice that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets,
payroll records, receipts for purchases, and proof of
expenditures, as applicable.

5.10.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the
supporting documentation for allowable expenses to initiate
payment.

5.10.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting
documentation, and is emailed to
DHHS.BDSINVOICES@dhhs.nh.qov or mailed to:

BDS Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

5.11. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within 30 days
of approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

5.12. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses
shall be due to the Department no later than 40 days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Dale.

>  DS
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6. Contingency Shared Funds Pool

6.1. The statewide total price limitation among all 10 Area Agency
Agreements to assist AA's during the BDS transition period is $750,000
in SFY 24 and $250,000 in SFY 25. No maximum or minimum funding
amount per Contractor is guaranteed and funding will be disbursed on a
first-come/first-served basis considering Department approvals.

6.2. The Contractor may request approval for reimbursement from the
Department, in a format satisfactory to the Department. The Contractor
must ensure the request includes justifications of:

6.2.1. Client/Family specific needs, not covered by other source(s) and
not contemplated as part of the transition to direct bill; or

6.2.2. Agency-operational issues related to the organizational change
due to the direct bill transition.

6.2.3. Depending on the request, the Department may require a
business plan, at its sole discretion.

6.3. The Contractor must submit an invoice, upon Department approval of the
reimbursement request, with supporting documentation to the
Department as outlined in Section 5.8 above.

7. Medicaid Administrative Rates for Designated Area Agency Delivery
System (DAADS) Functions and Intake & Eligiblity:

7.1. The Contractor must complete the tasks, described in Exhibit B, and as
governed by He-M 505, required to get reimbursed for the DAADS; and
Intake & Eligiblity through the Department approved system.

7.2. The Contractor must be in compliance with items identified with an
asterisk in Exhibit B, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.11, Table
1 - DAADS Functions, no later than January 1, 2024 or at a later date,
as agreed upon by the Department.

7.3. Desionated Area Agency Delivery System fDAADS):

7.3.1. The Contractor must provide all functions as listed in Exhibit B,
Section 2.11, Table 1, DAADS Functions, for individuals who are
BDS 1915 (c) Waiver (Waiver) eligibile and receiving a monthly
Waiver service, as outlined in each of the BDS 1915 (c) Approved
Waivers.

7.3.2. The Contractor must provide documentation to the Department,
as requested, to support the provision of DAADS functions.

7.3.3. The Contractor will receive one (1) DAADS payment per Waiver
.individual receiving a waiver service in a calendar month.

— 08
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7.3.4. The Contractor will not receive a DAADS payment if a Waiver
individual's Medicaid is down in a calendar month.

7.3.5. The Contractor will not receive.a DAADS payment if an individual
does not receive a Waiver service in a calendar month.

7.4. Intake & Eligibility:

7.4.1. The Contractor must provide all functions as listed in Exhibit B,
Section 2.11, Table 1, DAADS Functions, related to intake and
eligibility, for individuals accessing Area Agency (AA)'s for
services, and have been found RSA 171-A or He-M 522 Eligible
or Conditionally Eligible to receive AA Services..

7.4.2. The Contractor must submit, to the Department, a list of individuals
who have been found RSA 171-A or He-M 522 eligible or
conditionally eligibe to receive AA services,

7.4.3. The Contractor will receive one (1) Eligibility Medicaid payment
per individual's lifetime.

7.4.4. The Contractor agrees billings shall occur on at least a monthly
basis and shall follow a process determined by the Department.

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of noncopmliance with any Federal or State law, rule, or regulation applicable
to the service provided, or if the said services have not been satisfactorily
completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

9. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

10. Audits

10.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

10.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

10.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.
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10.1.3. Condition 0 - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

10.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single Audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to
dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements
of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
awards.

10.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

10.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

10.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 {Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
vyorkplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the wori<place;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agencyC—OS
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

5/28/2023

Vendor Name: Northern Human services

f— OocuSigr>«d by;

Qate Gaetjens-Oleson
Title: chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION REGARDiNG LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS *
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
"Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•"Medicaid Program under Title XIX
"Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: Northern Human services

— OoeuSlgnad by:

5/28/2023

Date Gaetjens-Oleson
Title: • r

Chief Executive Officer

-0$

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials^-
5/28/2023

curoHHsn 10713 Page 1 of 1 Date



DocuStgn Envelope ID; 8E109C64-0DD2-4039-B79F-F92D1ABD5O98

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not detsarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge andi'"3ndr~"'
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Northern Human Services

0©euSigf>«d by:

5/28/2023 ■ 1
Diti W^OTA^e Gaetjens-Oleson

Title: . .. ...
chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section-1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity):

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discrimin'ating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of'sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which.provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: Northern Human services

OoeuSlgntd by:

5/28/2023

Date Name:'^:iLf2anne Gaetjens-Oleson
Title, chief Executive officer
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted-in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions oFthe law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
SI 000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Northern Human services

— Oo«uSign«d by:

5/28/2023

- . ■' ■e«ae9ajaeBemBi... /
Date Name: Suzanne Gaetjens-Oleson

Chief Executive Officer
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business •
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that "
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaarecation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

«H9y
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or .
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying .,
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has ah opportunity to object to the disclo^e^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busi^^
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

6. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate,

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the. Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assgpiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivij
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-S?) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

]. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity." Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials^
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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Seareaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Northern Human services

Tbe«Slaleiby: Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Melissa Hardy Suzanne Gaetjens-Oleson

Name of Authorized Representative
Director, dltss

Name of Authorized Representative

chief Executive Officer

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

5/30/2023 5/28/2023

Date Date

3/2014 Exhibit 1
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (UEI #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency AcL

Contractor Name: Northern Human services

— DocuSigiMd by:

5/28/2023

Date N^e:'^'O^^S^h"g"Gaetjens -oleson
Title: chief Executive Officer

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
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FORM A

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  . C12LWJKRHJM7
1. The DEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

3.

4.

In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,

loans, grants, sub^rants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or

cooperative agreements?

X  NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of

1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above Is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUA}HHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability Ar>d Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information, "Breach"
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all non-public information
owned, managed, created, received for or on behalf of, the Department that is
protected by information security, privacy or confidentiality rules. Agreement and state
and federal laws or policy. This information may include but is not limited to, derivative
data, Protected Health Information (PHI), Personally Identifiable Information (Pll),
Substance Use Disorder Information (SUD), Federal Tax Information, Social Security
Administration, and CJIS (Criminal Justice Information Services) data, including the
copy of information submitted known as the Phoenix Data. Confidential Information
or Confidential Data shall not include medical records produced and maintained by

. the contractor in the course of their practice or information owned by the patient/client.
Contractor shall be solely responsible for the administration and secure maintenance
of such medical and other records produced and maintained by the contractor."End
User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee, business
associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives Confidential
Data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

4. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

5. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of a
system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic mail,
all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access, use,
disclosure, modification or destruction.

C~os
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

6. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a'protected network (designed, tested, and approved,
by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not
adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or Confidential
Data.

7. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish or
trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-0:19, blometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

8. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

9. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

10. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

11. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American
National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to. all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request
for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure.

so-
V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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3. Omitted.

4. The Contractor agrees that Confidential Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data obtained under this Contract may not be used
for any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the Confidential Data to the authorized
representatives of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the
terms of this Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End' User is transmitting Confidential Data between
applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated by an expert
knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application's encryption capabilities
ensure, secure transmission via the Internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting
Confidential Data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data,
the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL
encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential
Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential
Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an'open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed
on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
— D8
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End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure
the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.
SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-
hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the Confidential Data for the duration of this Contract. After
such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the Confidential Data, unless, otherwise
required by law or permitted under this Contract. If it is infeasible to return or destroy the
Confidential Data, protections pursuant to this Information Security Requirements Exhibit
survive this contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process Confidential Data collected
in connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact Confidential Data State of NH
systems and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided
systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Confidential Data

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location.

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.
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B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such Confidential Data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any Confidential Data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing Confidential Data
shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with
industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media sanitization, or otherwise
physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing) as described in NIST
Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media Sanitization, National
Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of Commerce. The
Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the Confidential Data
destruction, and will provide written certification to DHHS upon request. The written
certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate Confidential Data has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless othen/vise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract.
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the Confidential Data received under this Contract, as
follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Confidential Data
collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Confidential Data
throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation, transformation,
use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to store the
Confidential Data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Confidential Data where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
potential security events that can impact Confidential Data, State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

-OS
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5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Confidential Data.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with DHHS to sign and comply with all applicable State of New
Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and procedures,
systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining and
maintaining access to any DHHS system(s). Agreements will be completed and signed
by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized.

8. If DHHS determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR
160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA)
with DHHS and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement.

9. Omitted.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Confidential Data or State
of New Hampshire data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within DHHS.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent
future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from the breach,
including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs
associated with website and telephone-call center services necessary due to the
breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the
level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not
limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act
Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160
and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health information and as
applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to preventr"08
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unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm for the
Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State's Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any Confidential Data or State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract
to only those authorized End Users who need such Confidential Data to perform
their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or PFI
are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such
information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential I nformation received under this Contract and individually identifiable
Confidential Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, and in all cases,
such Confidential Data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or
when stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

i. understand that ttieir user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
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This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

A. The Contractor must notify NH DHHS Information Security via the email address provided
in this Exhibit, of any known or suspected Incidents or Breaches immediately after the
Contractor has determined that the aforementioned has occurred and that Confidential

Data may have been exposed or compromised.

1. Parties acknowledge and agree that unless notice to the contrary is provided by
DHHS in its sole discretion to Contractor, this Section V.A.I constitutes notice by
Contractor to DHHS of the ongoing existence and occurrence or attempts of
Unsuccessful Security Incidents for which no additional notice to DHHS shall be
required. "Unsuccessful Security Incidents" means, without limitation, pings and
other broadcast attacks on Contractor's firewalls, port scans, unsuccessful log-on
attempts, denial of service attacks, and any combination of the above, so long as
no such incident results in unauthorized access, use or disclosure of Confidential
Data.

8. Perjhe terms of this Exhibit the Contractor's and End User's security incident and breach
response procedures must address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify incidents;

2. Determine if Confidential Data is involved in incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed incidents to DHHS as required in this Exhibit. DHHS
will provide the Contractor with a NH DHHS Business Associate Incident Risk
Assessment Report for completion.

4. Within 24 hours of initial notification to DHHS, email a completed NH DHHS Business
Associate Incident Risk Assessment Preliminary Report to the DHHS' Information
Security Office at the email address provided herein;

5. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of incidents
and determine risk-based responses to incidents and mitigation measures, prepare to
include DHHS In the incident response calls throughout the incident response
investigation;

V5. Last update 10/09/18
Modified for the CMHC contract

June 2021

Exhibit K

DHHS Inforrnation

Security Requirements
Page 8 of 9

Contractor initials

Date

5/28/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

6. Identify incident/breach notification method and timing;

7. Within one business week of the conclusion of the Incident/Breach response
investigation a final written Incident Response Report and Mitigation Plan Is submitted
to DHHS Information Security Office at the email address provided herein;

8. Address and report incidents and/or Breaches that implicate personal information (PI)
to DHHS in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20 and this Agreement;

9. Address and report incidents and/or Breaches per the HIPAA Breach Notification Rule,
and the Federal Trade Commission's Health Breach Notification Rule 16 CFR Part

318 and this Agreement.

10. Comply with all applicable state and federal suspected or known Confidential Data
loss obligations and procedures.

C. All legal notifications required as a result of a breach of Confidential Data, or potential breach,
collected pursuant to this Contract shall be coordinated with the State If caused by the
Contractor. The Contractor shall ensure that any subcontractors used by the Contractor shall
similarly notify the State of a Breach, or potential Breach immediately upon discovery, shall
make a full disclosure, including providing the State with all available information, and shall
cooperate fully with the State, as defined above.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DH HSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs. nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

y—DS

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
Modified for the CMHC contract DHHS Information

June 2021 Security Requirements 5/28/2023
Page 9 of 9 Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secrctarv' ofState of the Stale ofNcw Hampshire, do hereby certify that NORTHERN HUMAN

SERVICES is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 03, 1971. 1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 62362

Certificate Number: 0006196920

bso

<5^

-ft

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.\ed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th day of April A.D: 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretar>' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Madelene Costello. hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected ClerWSecretary/Gfficer of Northern Human
Services .

(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a tnje copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Mav 23. 2023. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Dale)

VOTED: That Suzanne Gae^ens-Oleson, CEO. (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Northern Human Services to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above cuirently occupy the position{s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein^

Dated: 5/26/23 %,\,L
—  J u.HAU

Signature of Elected Officer
Name; Madelene Costello

Title: President

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD^ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MfcMJDrrYYY)

3/13/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN'THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on "
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsemeht(s).

PRODUCER

US! Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

NAMef^^ Christine A Skehan
WC.'ffo. Ext): 855 874-0123 r^.No);

ADDRESS: Christine.Skehan@usi.eom
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A NH Employers Insurance Company 13083

INSURED

Northern Human Services, Inc.

87 Washington Street

Conway. NH 03818-6044

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
UTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL
INSR

SUBR
WVO POLICY NUMBER

POUCY EFF
(MM^OWYVY)

POLICY EXP
IMM/DO/VYYY) UMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE □ OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

occuffencel

MEO EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENT. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY I I JEI^ I I LOC
GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accidano
BODILY INJURY (P«f peraon)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accideni)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par acodani)

UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS LlAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIL^Y y / N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE I 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory In NH)
If yos, dascdlM undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS t^low

ECC60040004322022A 09/30/2022 09/30/2023 „ PER
X STATUTE

OTH-
FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $500.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $500,000

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional RamarM Schadule. may ba attachad If more ipaca la required)
**Evi(dence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH Department of Health
and Human Services
129 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301

'

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S39370746/M37744131

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CASCA
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ACORD,. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMmorrnfY)

4/06/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

raooucER

US! Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

Christine A Skehan

r«o. Ex«: 855 874-0123
ADDRESS: Christine.Skehan(gusi.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A; Philadelphia Insurance Company 32204

INSURED

Northern Human Services, Inc.

87 Washington Street

Conway, NH 03818-6044

INSURER B ;

INSURER C :

INSURER 0 :

INSURER E :

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE .

ADDL

INSR
SUBR

WVP POLICY NUMBER
POUCY EFF

(MM/DO/YYYYI
POUCYEXP

(MM/OD/YYYYl UMns

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

)E 1 X| OCCUR
PHPK2399376 33/31/2023 03/31/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE s1.000.000

CLAIMS-MAC slOO.OOO

MED EXP (Any on* p«son) S5.000

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY si,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE s3,000,000

POLICY 1 1 JECT 1 1 LOG
OTHER;

PRODUCTS - COMPlOP AGG s3,000,000

s

A AUTOMOBILE LUBILITY PHPK2535754 33/31/2023 03/31/2024 COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
(Ea accidenn si ,000,000

X ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SC
Al

HEDULED
rros
)N-OWNED
nos ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) s

NC
Al

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per aeddanik s

s

A X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB857366 33/31/2023 03/31/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000

AGGREGATE $10,000,000

DEO X RETENTION S s

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOWPARTNER/EXECUnVEl 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If yes, descritM ucxlar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS P«lQw

N/A

PER OTH-
STATUTF FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s

E.U DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE s

E.L DISEASE - POLCY LIMIT s

A

A

Entity Prof Liab

{hys Prof Liab

PHPK2399376

PHPK2399376

03/31/2023

03/31/2023

03/31/2024

03/31/2024

1,000,000/3,000,000

1,000,000/3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Addltion.1 Rmtu/Iu Sch«dult. m>y Im atUcfted if mort tpaca It rM|ulfad)

Evidence of Insurance.

Mid-Levei and Allied Health staff share in the limits of Insurance of the Entity.

Physicians have their own separate $1M/$3M limits of insurance, and do not share in the entity Limits of

insurance.

Evidence of insurance.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Concord, NH 03301

1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S39703484/M39662594

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
DGSZP
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Statcmentof Mission

"To assist and advocate for people affected by mental illness, developmental disabilities and related
disorders in living meaningful lives."

Statement of Vision

Everyone who truly needs our services can receive them, as we strive to meet ever-changing needs
through advocacy, innovation, collaboration and skill.
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

^cfcMKnul Auouiittiuti

CHtTIFIED PUBLIC ACOOUNTANTS
WLTOORO • NORTH CONWAY

DOVER .CONCORD

STRATH.\M

To the Board of Directors of

Northeiri Human Services, Inc.

Conway, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northern Human Services, Inc. (a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as
of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of cash flows, and notes to the financial
statements for the years then ended, and the related statements of activities and functional
expenses for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this Includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Northern Human Services, Inc. as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and its
cash flows for the years then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June
30, 2021 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

1
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Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited Northern Human Services, Inc.'s June 30, 2020 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements in
our report dated January 20, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information
presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, is consistent, in all material
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of functional revenues and expenses on pages 27 - 35 and
schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 36, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Av^ards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 1, 2022, on our consideration of Northern Human Services, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Northern Human
Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Northern Human Services, Inc.'s internal control' over financial reporting and
compliance.

March 1.2022
North Conway, New Hampshire
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated

Cash and cash equivalents, board designated
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $222,000 and

$311,000 for 2021 and 2020, respectively

Grants receivable

Assets, limited use

Prepaid expenses and deposits

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. NET

2021

17,290,923

318,202

3,692,791

224,187

806,316

206.897

22,539,316

193.904

2020

13,698,376

318,202

2,431,296

515,878

724,596

193.859

18,082.207

261.407

OTHER ASSETS

Investments

Cash value of life insurance

Total other assets

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Compensated absences payable

Other grants payable

Refundable advances

Deferred revenue

Refundable advances, maintenance of effort

Client funds held in trust

Due to related party

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Net assets without donor restrictions

Undesignated

Board designated

Total net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2.524,860

470.832

2,995,692

$  25.728.912

1,300,981

1,656,658

814,990

925,485

110,000

282,617

469,616

53,208

5,613,555

19,540,045

318,202

19,858,247

257,110

20,115,357

2,064,316
452.278

2,516.594

$  20.860,208

1,589,607

1,522,001

794,893

187,352

132,500

101,857

339,562

397,289

58,112

5,123,173

15,162,607

318.202

15,480,809

256,226

15.737.035

$  25,728,912 $ 20,660,208

See Notes to Financial Statements

3
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2021

Total

2020

Summarized

PUBLIC SUPPORT

State and federal grants
Other public support
Local and county support

Donations

$  2,897,159
967,136

635,427
13,262

$ $  2,897,159

967.136

635,427

13,262

$  2,169,389

591,205

405,607
22,671

Total public support 4,512,984 4.512.984 3,188,872

REVENUES

Program service fees

Production income

Other revenues

42.144.980

275.842

370,636

- 42.144.980

275,842

370,636

41.907,391

327,416

266,938

Total revenues 42,791.458 42,791,458 42,501,745

Total public support and revenues 47,304,442 47.304.442 45,690,617

EXPENSES

Program Services;
Mental health

Developmental services
11,535,421
25,138,884

. 11,535,421
25,138,884

11.370.057

25,786.386

Total program services 36,674,305 - 36,674,305 37,156,443

General management 6,763,823 . 6,763,823 6,271,198

Total expenses 43,438.128 43,438,128 43.427,641

EXCESS OF PUBLIC SUPPORT

AND REVENUES OVER EXPENSES 3,866.314 3,866,314 2,262,976

NON-OPERATING INCOME

Investment return

Gain on sale of property

Change in cash value of life insurance

Interest income

477,198

18,554

15,372 884

477,198

18,554

16,256

113,984

3,500

19,693

71,444

Total non-operating income 511,124 884 512,008 208,621

Change in net assets 4,377,438 884 4,378,322 2,471,597

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 15,480.809 256,226 15,737,035 13,265,438

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  19.858.247 $  257,110 $  20,115,357 $  15,737,035

See Notes to Financial Statements

4
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. IMC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  4,378,322 $  2,471,597

Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets
to net cash from operating activities:

Depredation 121,923 181,884

Unrealized gain on investments (308,604) (9,790)
Realized gain on investments (125,748) (57,410)
Gain on sale of property . (3,500)
Change in cash value of life Insurance (4,546) (6,288)

(increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable (1,261,495) (465,305)
Grants receivable 291,691 (288,359)
Assets, limited use (81,720) (222,685)
Prepaid expenses and deposits (13,038) 101,218

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (288,626) 1,099,424

Accrued payroll and related liabilities 134,657 15,285

Compensated absences payable 20,097 51,757

Other grants payable 738,133 75,170

Refundable advances (22,500) (64,517)

Deferred revenue 180,760 (329,484)

Refundable advances, maintenance of effort (339,562) (51,896)
Client funds held in trust 72,327 227,925

Due to related party (4,904) 9,689

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,487,167 2,734,715

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property (54,420) (83,336)

Proceeds from sale of property - 8,000

Purchases of investments (449,324) (302,115)

Proceeds from sales of investments 465,978 318,669

Reinvested dividends (42,846) (46,784)

Change in cash value of life insurance (14,008) (13,405)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (94,620) (118,971)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,392,547 2,615,744

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 14,216,578 11,600,834

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. END OF YEAR $  17,609,125 $  14,216,578

See Notes to Financial Statements
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■OnPTHFRW HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
TOTALS FOR ALL PROGRAMS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Mental Developmental General, 2021 2020

Health Services Subtotals Manaoement Total Summarized

XPENSES

Salaries and wages $ 7.775.256 $ 6,292,766 $ 14,068.022 $ 4,210,405 $ 18.278.427 $ 18,347,636

Employee benefits 1,475,632 1,690,124 3,165,756 839,253 4,005,009 4,312.503

Payroll taxes 566,611 474,631 1,041,242 249,281 1,290,523 1,259,813

Client wages 104,421 20,394 124,815 - 124,815 207,493

Professional fees 136,954 15,280,316 15.417,270 776,946 16,194,216 14,930,020

Staff development
44,455and training 10,842 7,525 18,367 8,074 26,441

Occupancy costs 569.962 453,014 1,022,976 176,514 1,199,490 1,298,725

Consumable supplies 124,142 176,088 300,230 44,447 344,677 462,185

Equipment expenses 135,587 98.955 234,542 56,728 291,270 293,138

Communications 111,291 108,591 219,882 39,243 259,125 297,725

Travel and transportation 109,925 307,696 417,621 1^415 431,036 867,152

Assistance to individuals 393 39,432 39,825 255 40,080 79,139

Insurance 69,257 65,306 134,563 34,882 169,445 152,963

Membership dues 30,928 7,033 37,961 89,176 127,137 128,466

Bad debt expense 295,875 116,542 412,417 -
412,417 616,701

Other expenses 18,345 471 18,816 225,204 244,020 129,527

Total expenses $ 11,535.421 $ 25.138,884 $ 36,674,305 $ 6.763,823 $43.438.128 $ 43.427.641

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

State Children

Non-Specialized Eligible Adult Outpatient and

Outoatient Outoatient Contracts Adolescents

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages $  313,129 $  999,108 $  262,348 $  961,490

Employee benefits 46.955 126,634 36.922 161,231

Payroll taxes 22,426 67,614 20,231 69,709

Client wages - - - -

Professional fees 6.729 14,954 4,615 28,017

Staff development and training 210 750 1,650 1,599

Occupancy costs 22,539 58,850 16,433 48,383

Consumable supplies 13,100 10,843 1,577 7,768

Equipment expenses 4,617 14,478 3,973 12,635

Communications 7,558 10,686 2,043 9,291

Travel and transportation 79 609 1,848 12,919

Assistance to individuals 121 102 - 24

Insurance 3,329 10,298 2,866 9,061

Membership dues 1,868 7,782 1,145 4,000

Bad debt expense - 69,696 3 26,325

Other expenses 45 389 278 542

Total expenses $  442,705 $  1,392,793 $  355,932 $  1,352,994

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Continued

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Emergency

Services

Other

NomBBH

Integrated
Health Grant

Bureau of

Drug & Alcohol
Services

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages $  536,321 S 281,990 $ ■ $ 144,308

Employee benefits 83,172 67.005 -
22,609

Payroll taxes 37.790 20,287 - 10,566

Client wages -
-

- -

Professional fees 7,873 6,777 - 1,500

Staff development and training 549 ■ 654 -
660

Occupancy costs 28,497 15,258 -
7,147

Consumable supplies 3,655 2,358 -
1,037

Equipment expenses 9,365 4,880 10,980 2,148

Communications 22,467 1,972 439 851

Travel and transportation 79 1,746 -
2

Assistance to individuals 22 •
- -

Insurance 5.404 2,660 -
1,426

Membership dues 1,676 908 -
426

Bad debt expense 16,215 •  139 - 1,536

Other expenses 60 45 - 270

Total expenses $  753,145 s 406,679 $ 11,419 $ 194,486

See Notes to Financial Statements
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OocuSign Envelope 10; BE109C64-ODD2-4039-B79F-F92D1ABD5098

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES INC

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Continued

Drug
Court

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Client wages
Professional fees

Staff development and training

Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses
Communications

Travel and transportation
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues
Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

277,418

60,541

19,504

4,371

269

7,266

1,591

3,949

4.473

1,908

1,959

830

16,884
2,324

403,287

Vocational

Services

140,446

38,606

13,826

41,176

2,713

214

10,242

2,114

2,299

10,446

8,291

1,475

469

3,689

1,287

277,293

Restorative

Partial

Hospital

47,116

12,990

3,450

581

5

2,537

442

754

160

118

510

159

114

494

Case

Management

839,839

166,430

62,613

12,316

568

41,715

7,558

11,528

10,508

26,180

34

8,099

2,614

69,011

4,020

69,430 $ 1,283.033

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Continued

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Supportive

Living

Community

Residences

Bridge

Grant

Victims of

Crime Act

Program

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

Payroll taxes
Client wages
Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses
Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

544,477

143,351

41,232

8,003

372

35,606

5,231

6,328

6,553

17,977

6,014

1,935

13,449
661

811,624

196,885

59,908

4,050

95

44,115

21,676

9,137

10,255

2,155

71

2,763

839

8,518

7,660

50,868

11,749

3,661

422

600

119,154

686

521

203

2,639

365

198

407.713

69,461

28,644

5,633

396

20,584

2,431

5,096

2,652

6

10

3,773

1,445

11,810

832,989 $  1,179,751 191,066 559,654

See Notes to Financial Statements

10



DocuSign Envelope 10: BE109C64-ODD2-4039-B79F-F92D1ABD5098

Continued

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Other Total

ACT Mental Health Mental Health 2020

Team Proorams Proorams Summarized

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages $  980,105 $  176,956 $  7,775,256 $  7,256,309

Employee benefits 185,253 25,838 1,475,632 1,443,451

Payroll taxes 67.045 18,105 566,611 511,611

Client wages 7,152 56,093 104,421 108,499

Professional fees 26,246 1,354 136,954 206,342

Staff development and training 2,166 85 10,842 19,191

Occupancy costs 68,851 22,785 569,962 604,577

Consumable supplies 6,023 36,052 124,142 196,136

Equipment expenses 12,052 18,847 135,587 105,910

Communications 5,171 6,563 111,291 131,115

Travel and transportation 21,851 11,518 109,925 189,477

Assistance to individuals 9 • 393 1,961

Insurance 8,614 641 69,257 51,989

Membership dues 4,436 198 30,928 24,205

Bad debt expense 53,517 4,969 295,875 508,139

Other expenses . 270 18,345 11,145

Total expenses $  1,448.491 $  380,274 $  11,535,421 $  11,370,057

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Service

Coordination

School

District

Contracts

Day

Programs

Early

Supports

& Services

Independent

Living

Services

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Client wages
Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses
Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

473,259
97,243

35,771

471,423

285

44,849

9,129

5,103

4,848

3,678

4,655

9

$  1,150.252

53,841

9,020

4.100

.  189

15

2,557

550

525

316

628

2

3,463

75,206

$  1,568,347

643,089

126,667

15,581

486,570

711

204,494

33,585

61,073

24,762

186,346

3,751

23,442

3,200

13,759

^

$  3,395,671

468,930

89,903

34,889

141,229

1.958

9,439

5,627

4,055

14,168

27,314

58

4,928

117

94,766

897,381

71,126

45,839

5,478

22,515

71

5,319

1,120

986

718

871

1

1,097

2

603

155,746

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Continued

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICFS INC

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Combined Day/ Individual Combined Day/
Family Residential Supported Consolidated Residential

Residence Vendor LIvina Services Services

XPENSES

Salaries and wages $  2,184,896 $ S  266,429 $  776,126 $  18,924
Employee benefits 527,726 - 76,555 129,796 4,112

Payroll taxes 163,381 . 19,780 50,841 1,451

Client wages 4,813 - - - .

Professional fees 3,587,226 1,798,547 1,293 1,674,606 . 1,639,235
Staff development and training 2,566 - 389 384 37

Occupancy costs 130,094 - 35,618 3,979 1,530

Consumable supplies 80,845 - 10,652 15,169 10,628

Equipment expenses 19,102 - 1,810 2,981 257

Communications 27,246 - 1,972 27,762 894

Travel and transportation 29,562 - 3,921 51,214 -

Assistance to individuals 29 - - 25,574 .

Insurance 20,734 - 2,476 3,002 254

Memt^ership dues 450 - 4' 2,844 -

Bad debt expense 3,951 - - - -

Other-expenses 98 - - 79 .

Total expenses $  6,782,719 $  1,798,547 $  420,899 $  2,764,357 $  1,677,322

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Continued

NORTHFRM HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Client wages
Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses
Communications

Travel and transportation
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Other Total

Acquired Developmental Developmental

Brain Services Services 2020

Disorder Programs Programs Summarized

$  30.797 S  380,091 $ 6,292,766 $  7,288,247

13.783 53,058 1,690,124 2,018,023

2,237 30,036 474,631 505,954

- - 20,394 98,994

64,018 5,393,465 15,280,316 13,952,776

51 1,058 7,525 19,969

1,086 14,049 453,014 510.258

292 8,491 176,088 206,721

327 2,736 98,955 141,286

427 5,478 108,591 118,675

401 4,389 307,696 646.801

- 10,019 39,432 77,038

337 3,753 65,306 73,139

1 404 7,033 16,785
. 116,542 108,562

- - 471 3,158

$  113,757 $  5,907,027 S 25,138,884 $  25,786,386

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Northern Human Services, Inc. (the Organization), is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation, and
was created to develop and provide a comprehensive program of mental health, developmental
disabilities, and rehabilitative care to the residents of Northern New Hampshire.

Basis of Accountina

The financial statements of Northern Human Services, Inc. have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting and, accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables and other
liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net assets are'determined by
the presence or absence of donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the
primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may be used' at the
discretion of the Organization's management and board of directors..

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by
donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those
restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Organization had net assets'with donor restrictions and net
assets without donor restrictions.

Accountina Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for use without donor restrictions unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future periods or for
specific purposes are reported as support with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restrictions. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is
received, the Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.

Cash Eouivaients

The Organization considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

15



DocuSign Envelope ID: BE109C64-ODD2-4039-B79F-F92D1ABD5098

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible-amounts through a charge to activities
and a credit to a valuation allowance based on historical account write-off patterns by the payor,
adjusted as necessary to reflect current conditions. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the
valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The Organization has no policy for
charging interest on overdue accounts nor are Its accounts receivable pledged as collateral.

It is the policy of the Organization to provide sen/ices to all eligible residents of Northern New
Hampshire without regard to ability to pay. As a result of this policy, all charity care write-offs are
recorded as reductions of revenue in the period in which sen/ices are provided. The accounts
receivable allowance includes the estimated amount of charity care and contractual allowances
included in the accounts receivable balances. The computation of the contractual allowance is
based on historical ratios of fees charged to amounts collected.

Propertv and Depreciation

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if contributed, at estimated fair value at the date of
contribution. Material assets with a useful life in excess of one year are capitalized. Depreciation
is provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the cost of the
assets over their estimated useful lives as follows;

Vehicles 5-10 years
Equipment 3-10 years

Costs for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments are capitalized.
Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with the related
accumulated depreciation, and any gain or loss is recognized.

Investments

Investments consist of mutual funds and interest-bearing investments and are stated at fair value
on the statements of financial position based on quoted market prices. The Organization's
investments are subject to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market volatility,
which may substantially impact the fair value of such investments at any given time.

Accrued Earned Time

The Organization has accrued a liability for future compensated absences that its employees have
earned and which is vested with the employees.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as revenue in
the period in which the related services are provided or costs are incurred.

Program Service Fee Revenue

The Organization has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the
Organization at amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include
reimbursed costs, discounted charges, and per diem payments. Program service fee revenue is
reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from clients, third-party payors, and others for
services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements
with the third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Summarized Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but
not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a
presentation In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020, from which the summarized information
was derived.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature, such as salaries, rent, supplies,
etc. Functional expenses are classified by the type of activity for which expenses are incurred,
such as management and general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function
using a reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use. The costs
of providing certain program and supporting services have been directly charged.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction
under Section 170(b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an organization that is not a private
foundation.

FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing,
and a system for measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements, and is
effective for Northern Human Services' current year. Management has analyzed Northern Human
Services' tax positions taken on its information returns for all open tax years (three years), and has
concluded that no additional provision for income tax is required in Northern Human Services'
financial statements.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) - Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced the most existing revenue
recognition guidance In U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires expanded disclosures relating to the
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue from cash flows arising frorri contracts with
customers. The Organization adopted the new standard effective July 1, 2020, the first day of the
Organization's fiscal year using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption did not result in
a change to the accounting for any of the applicable revenue streams; as such, no cumulative
effect adjustment was recorded.

Revenue Recognition

The Organization derives revenues from services provided to its clients. Service revenue is
reported at the amount that reflects consideration to which the Organization expects to be entitled
in exchange for providing services. These amounts are due from clients and third-party payers.
Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied.
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Organization and the contract with the client or third-party and are satisfied when the service is
performed.

The Organization determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and
services provided as well as the state contract rate with third-party payers.

2. AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,609,125 $ 14,216,578

Accounts receivable, net 3,692,791 2,431,296

Grants receivable 224.187 515,878

Assets, limited use 806,316 724,596

Investments 2,524,860 2,064,316

Cash value of life insurance 470.832 452.278

Total financial assets 25,328,111 20,404,942

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:
Cash and cash equivalents, board designated 318,202 318,202

Client funds held in trust 469,616 397,289

Net assets with donor restrictions 257.110 256.226

Total amounts not available within one year 1.044.928 971.717

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures
over the next twelve months $ 24.283.183 L- 19.433.225

The Organization's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 120 days of operating
expenses (approximately $10,500,000).

3. ASSETS. LIMITED USE

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, assets, limited use consisted of the following:

Donor restricted cash

Client funds held in trust

Employee benefits

Total assets, limited use

2021

257,110
469,801
79.405

2020

256,226
397,253
71.117

806.316 $ 724.596
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

4. PROPERTY AND DEPRECIATION

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, property and equipment consisted of the following:

2021 2020

Vehicles $ 346,326 $ 633,548
Equipment 272.231 2.779.836

Total property and equipment 618,557 3,413,384
Less accumulated depreciation 424.653 3.151.977

Property and equipment, net S 193.904 $ 261.407

Depreciation expense totaled $121,923 and $181,884 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

5. INVESTMENTS

The Organization's investments are presented in the financial statements in the aggregate at fair
value and consisted of the following as of June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Fair Fair

Value Cost Value Cost

Money Market Funds $ 27,012 $ 27.012 $  51,642 $ 51,642
Mutual Funds:

Domestic equity funds 952,660 651,802 721,852 649,349

International equity funds 438,861 335,741 305,407 298,585
Fixed income funds 1,091,079 1,064,166 949,227 900,785

Other mutual funds 15.248 14.386 36.188 39.192

Total $ 2.524.860 S £  2 064 316 $ 1.939.553

Investments in common stock and U.S. government securities are valued at the closing price
reported in the active market in which the securities are traded. Management considers all
investments to be long term in nature.

2021 2020

Components of Investment Return:

Interest and dividends $ 42,846 $ 46,784

Unrealized gains on investments 308,604 9,790
Realized gains on investments 125.748 57.410

S  477.198 £ 113.984

Investment management fees for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $16,215 and
$15,350, respectively, and were netted with investment return.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10 provides a definition of fair value which focuses on an exit price rather
than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally accepted accounting principles for
measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-
specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In
accordance with FASB ASC 820-10, the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with
market, income and cost approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market
participant assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of
the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 820 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market prices in
active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting
date, and fair value can be determined through the use of models or other valuation
methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations
where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and the reporting
entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of the asset or liability
includirig assumptions regarding risk.

The Organization's financial instruments consist of cash, short-term receivables and payables, and
refundable advances. The carrying value for all such instruments, considering the terms,
approximates fair value at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets at fair value. There
have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Mutual Funds: All actively traded mutual funds are valued at the daily closing price
as reported by the fund. These funds are required to publish their daily net asset
value (NAV) and to transact at that price. All mutual funds held by the Organization
are open-end mutual funds that are registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Life Insurance: The surrender value of life insurance is valued at the cash' value
guaranteed to the policyowner upon cancellation of the life insurance policy. The
surrender value is the value of investments less any surrender charges.
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The table below segregates all financial assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (at least annually) into the most appropriate level within
the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to determine the fair value at the measurement date:

Money Market Funds
Mutual Funds

Domestic equity funds
International equity funds
Fixed Income funds

Other funds

Cash Value of Life

Insurance

Total investments at

fair value

2021

Level 1

27.012 $

952,660
438,861

1,091,079

15,248

Level 2 Level 3

470.832

$  2524860 $ 470.832 <L

Total

27,012

952,660
438,861

1,091,079
15,248

470.832

$  2^95.692

2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 '

Money Market Funds

Mutual Funds

Domestic equity funds
International equity funds
Fixed income funds

Other funds

Cash Value of Life

Insurance

Total investments at

fair value

$ 51,642 $

721,852

305,407
949,227
36,188

452.278

$  2064316 £ 452 278 ^

Total

$  51,642

721,852

305,407
949,227

36,188

452.278

$  2.516.594

7. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a retirement plan for all eligible employees. Under the plan employees
can make voluntary contributions to the plan of up to 100% of pretax or after tax annual
compensation up to the maximum annual limit provided by the Internal Revenue Service. All
employees who work one thousand hours per year are eligible to participate after one year of
employment, as defined by the plan. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Organization
implemented a 2% discretionary contribution allocated each pay period. During the year ended
June 30, 2020, the Organization increased the discretionary contribution from 2% to 3%.
Contributions by the Organization totaled $744,597 and $422,993 for the years ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively.
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8. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains cash balances that, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The
balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 for the
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. At June 30. 2021 and 2020, the Organization had cash
balances in excess of FDIC coverage. However, in addition to FDIC coverage, the Organization
maintains a trl-party collateralization agreement with its primary financial institution and a trustee.
The trustee maintains mortgage-backed collateralization of 102% of the Organization's deposits at
its financial institution. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these accounts.

9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, approximately 87% and 86% of the total revenue
was derived from Medicaid, respectively. The future existence of the Organization is dependent
upon continued support from Medicaid.

In order for the Organization to receive Medicaid funding, they must be formally approved by the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community
Based Care Services, Bureau of Behavioral Health, and Bureau of Developmental Services as .the
provider of services for individuals with mental health illnesses and developmentally disabled
individuals, for that region. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Organization was reapproved
as a provider of mental health services with the Bureau of Behavioral Health through August 2021.

Medicaid receivables comprise approximately 90% and 87% of the total accounts receivable
balances at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

10. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Organization-has entered into various operating lease agreements to rent certain facilities and
office equipment. The terms of these leases range from one to five years. Rent expense under
these agreements aggregated $1,018,093 and $1,030,701 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases as of June 30, 2021 is
$942,259 for the year ending June 30. 2022.

See Note 11 for information regarding lease agreements with a related party.

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization is related to the nonprofit corporation Shallow River Properties, Inc. (Shallow
River) as a result of comrfion board membership. Shallow River was incorporated under the laws
of the State of New Hampshire on September 13, 1988, for the purpose of owning, maintaining,
managing, selling, and leasing real property associated with the provisipn of residential, treatment,
and administrative services for the clients and staff of the Organization.

22



DocuSign Envelope ID: BE109C64-ODD2-4039-B79F-F92D1ABD5098
A

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

The.Organization has transactions with Shallow River during its normal course of operations. The
significant related party transactions are as follows;

Due to/from Related Party

At June'30, 2021 and 2020, the Organization had a due to Shallow River balance in the amount of
$53,208 and $58,112, respectively.

Rental Expense

The Organization leases various properties, including office space, and properties occupied by the
Organization's clients from Shallow River under the terms of tenant at will agreements. The
Organization has the perpetual right to extend the leases. Total rental expense paid under the
terms of the leases was $770,034 for each of the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. The
Organization also leases space from a board member for $1,000 per month.

Management Fee

The Organization charges Shallow River for administrative expenses incurred on its behalf.
Management fee revenue aggregated $74,649 for each of the years ended June 30, 2021 and
2020.

Donation

Although-not required by agreement between Shallow River and the Organization, Shallow River
generally donates the excess of its revenues over expenses to the Organization in order to
maintain its 501(c)(2) tax-exempt status with the Internal Revenue Service. At June 30, 2021 and
2020, Shallow River did not make a donation to the Organization but retained its surplus of
$604,102 and $254,448, respectively, due to future plans of acquiring a new building and for use in
future renovation projects and maintenance costs.

12. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES. MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT

The Organization maintains contracted arrangements with multiple Medicaid managed care
organizations (MCOs) that provide a set per member per month payment for health care sen/ices
provided. This system helps manage costs, utilization, and quality of services. The Organization is
paid prior to services being provided each month and is required to maintain certain levels of
performance. A reconciliation is calculated at year end between the Organization and the MCOs to
determine if the Organization has been overpaid compared to actual utilization and services
performed, which the Organization would then be required to repay. Due to suspensions of the
required maintenance of effort levels of performance as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic during
the year ended June 30, 2021, there was no outstanding capitated payment liability at June 30,
2021. At June 30, 2020, the outstanding capitated payment liability totaled $339,562.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives funding under various state and federal grants. Under the terms of
these grants, the Organization is required to use the money within the grant period for purposes
specified in the grant proposal. If expenditures for the grant were found not to have been made in
compliance with the proposal, the Organization may be required to repay the grantor's funds.
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Excess funds generated from state and/or Medicaid funded programs may be expended, at the
Organization's discretion, to increase or improve service delivery within the program. The excess
funds may not be used to increase spending for personnel, professional fees, fringe benefits, or
capital expenditures without prior written approval of the State of New Hampshire.

The Organization has contracts with certain third-party payers requiring specific performance to
supervise and document certain events relating to client treatment. These agencies periodically
audit the performance of the Organization in fulfilling these requirements. If the payments were
found not to have been made in compliance with the contracts, the Organization may be required
to repay the funds received under the contract.

The Organization ensures its medical malpractice risks on a claims-made basis under a policy,
which covers all of its employees. The Organization intends to renew coverage on a claims-made
basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available.

Contracts with the State of New Hampshire and various federal agencies require that the
properties supported be used for certain programs and/or to serve specified client populations. If
Shallow River or the Organization should stop using the property to provide services acceptable to
these grantors, the grantors would be entitled to all or part of the proceeds from the disposition of
the property. These stipulations affect substantially all of the properties owned by Shallow River.
The affected amount and the disposition are determined by negotiation with the granting authority
at the time the property is sold.

14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, net assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following:

2021 2020

Certificates of Deposit - Memorial Fund $ 252,417 $ 252,417
Dream Team Fund 2,963 2,962

Income earned on the Memorial Fund 1.730 847

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 257.110

15. ENDOWMENT FUND AND NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

As a result of the June 30, 2006 merger of The Center of Hope for Developmental Disabilities, Inc.
(Center .of Hope), with and into the Organization, the Organization assumed responsibility for
certain assets of Center of Hope that are subject to charitable restrictions and designated for
particular purposes, namely the Memorial Fund (the Fund).

The Fund was created by the Center of Hope in 1989 for the purpose of seeking out and funding
experiences that make life more interesting and full for people with disabilities. In or around 1992,
additional funds were added to the Fund as a result of a testamentary bequest of Dorothy M.
Walters, for the purpose of providing "maintenance funds" for programs for individuals with mental
and developmental disabilities. The Center of Hope interpreted the terms of this bequest as
consistent with the purpose of the Fund, and the bequest meets the definition of an endowment
fund.
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The Not-for-Profit Entities Topic of the FASB ASC (ASC 958-205 and subsections) intends to
improve the quality of consistency of financial reporting of endowments held by not-for-profit
organizations. This Topic provides guidance on classifying the net assets associated with donor-
restricted endowment funds held by organizations that are subject to an enacted version of the
Uniform Prudent Management Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). New Hampshire has adopted
UPMIFA. The Topic also requires additional financial statement disclosures on endowments and
related net assets.

The Organization has followed an investment and spending policy to ensure a total return (income
plus capital change) necessary to preserve the principal of the fund and at the same time, provide
a dependable source of support for life-enhancing activities of eligible individuals. The
Organization will only distribute income generated by the fund, leaving the original corpus intact.

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, the Organization only invests the fund in
certificates of deposits, which ensures that a majority of the balance' of the Fund is covered by the
FDIC. The Organization has taken a risk adverse approach to managing the Fund in order to
mitigate financial market risk such as interest rate, credit and overall market volatility, which could
substantially impact the fair value of the Fund at any given time.

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the endowment was entirely composed of net assets with donor
restrictions.

Changes in endowment net assets (at fair value) as of June 30, 2021 and June 30. 2020 were as
follows:

2021 2020

Certificates of deposit, beginning of year $ 252,417 $ 252,417
Interest income 883 631

Withdrawals (883) (631)

Certificates of deposit end of year §^^252^412 $ 252 417

16. LONG TERM CARE STABILIZATION PROGRAM

In response to COVID-19, in April 2020. the State of New Hampshire established the Long Term Care
Stabilization (LTCS) Program to provide stipends to certain front line Medicaid providers. The
program was developed to incentivize these direct care workers to remain in or rejoin this critical
workforce and continue to provide high quality care to vulnerable persons during the pandemic. Under
the program, the New Hampshire Department of Employment Security (NHES) would distribute $300
per week in stipends to full time qualifying front line workers and $150 per week in stipends to part
time qualifying front line workers. The funding for the LTCS Program was provided through the
Coronavirus Relief Fund.

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Organization received and expended grant revenue of
$931,371 under the grant through payroll and subcontractor expenses. During the year ended June
30, 2020, the Organization received and expended grant revenue of $792,055 under the grant
through payroll and subcontractor expenses. During its initial implementation, the program ran from
April 2020 through July 31, 2020. In November 2020, the program was reinstated through December
2020.
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17. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were reclassifled to enhance
comparability with the current year's financial statements.

18. OTHER EVENTS

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its spread are affecting the
Organization. The significance of the impact of these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse
impact on the Organization's financial and operational results, will be dictated by the length of time
that such disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration of the
COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might be imposed in response
to the pandemic. The COVID-19 impact on the capital markets could also impact the Organization's
cost of borrowing. There are certain limitations on the Organization's ability to mitigate the adverse
financial impact of these items. Due to the measures put in place to prevent the spread of COVID-19
we are unable to estimate the future performance of the Organization.

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial position
date, but before financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized subsequent events
are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the
statement of financial position date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing
financial statements. Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date.
Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 1, 2022, the date the June 30, 2021
financial statements were available for issuance.
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Mental Developmental General 2021 2020

Health Services Subtotals Manaaement Total Summarized

REVENUES

Program service fees:

Client fees $  305,713 $  14,803 $  320.516 $  23 S  320,539 $ 597,740

Residential fees 64,198 213.811 278,009 . 278,009 290,389

Blue Cross 208,955 33,579 242,534 .242,534 219,130
Medlcaid 13,063,543 27,042,822 40,106,365 29,707 40.136,072 39,753,270
Medicare 649.861 - 649.861 . 649,861 527,140

Other insurance 433,282 45,782 479,064 80 479,144 377,932

Local educational authorities - 36,511 36.511 . 36,511 128,424

Vocational rehabilitation - 1,350 1,350 . 1,350 12,777

Other program fees 960 - 960 960 589

Production/service income 248,100 27,742 275,842 275,842 327,416

Public support:

Local/county government 411,211 32,667 443,878 191,549 635,427 405,607

Donations/contributions 7,881 200 8,081 5,181 13,262 22,671

Other public support 330,627 - 330,627 316,330 646,957 312,719

Bureau of Developmental Services
.  and Bureau of Behavioral Health 1,771,962 156,326 1,928,288 2,250 1,930,538 1,186,973

Other federal and state funding:

HUD - - - - . 75,565
Other - - - 966,621 966,621 906,851

Private foundation grants 306,674 • 306,674 13,505 320,179 278,486
Other revenues 192,359 70,417 262,776 107,860 370,636 266,938

Total revenues 17,995,326 27,676,010 45,671,336 1.633,106 47.304,442 45,690.617

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages S 7,775,256 $ 6,292,766 S 14,068,022 $ 4,210.405 S 18.278,427 S 18,347,636
Employee benefits 1,475,632 1,690,124 3,165,756 839,253 4,005,009 4,312,503

Payroll taxes 566,611 474,631 1,041,242 249,281 1,290,523 1,259,813

Client wages 104,421 20,394 124,815 . 124,815 207,493

Professional fees 136,954 15,280,316 15,417,270 776,946 16,194,216 14,930,020

Staff development and training 10,842 7,525 18,367 8,074 26,441 44,455

Occupancy costs 569,962 453,014 1,022,976 176,514 1,199,490 1,298,725

Consumable supplies 124,142 176,088 300,230 44,447 344,677 462,185

Equipment expenses 135,587 98,955 234,542 56,728 291,270 293,138

Communications 111,291 108,591 219,882 39,243 259,125 297,725

Travel and transportation 109,925 307,696 417,621 13,415 431,036 867,152

Assistance to individuals 393 39,432 39,825 255 40,080 79,139

Insurance 69,257 65,306 134,563 34,882 169,445 152,963

Membership dues 30,928 7,033 37,961 89,176 127,137 128,466
Bad debt expense 295,875 116,542 412,417 - 412,417 616,701

Other expenses 18,345 471 18,816 225,204 244,020 129,527

Total expenses - 11,535,421 25,138,884 36,674,305 6,763,823 43,438,128 43,427,641

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENSES $ 6,459,905 $ 2,537.126 $ 8,997,031 $ (5,130,717) S 3,866,314 $ 2,262,976
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MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Noo'Specialized

Outpatient

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees

Production/service income

Public support:
Local/county government
Donations/contributions

Other public support
Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:
HUD

Other

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Client wages
Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES

118,377

7,881

1,500

103,228

834,936

313,129

46,955

22,426

6,729

210

22,539

13,100

4,617

7,558

79

121

3,329

1,868

45

442,705

State

Eligible Audit
Outpatient

70,994 $

75,992

158,184

138,636

160,144

2,645,519

999,108

126,634

67,614

14,954

750

58,850

10,843

14,478

10,686

609

102

10,298

7,782

69,696

389

1,392,793

Outpatient
Contracts

81,041 $

50,653

1,890,740

428,320

194,765

553,261

390

9,713

563,364

262,348

36,922

20,231

4,615

■  1,650

16,433

1,577

3,973

2,043

1,848

2,866

1,145

3

278

355,932

Children

and

Adolescents

46,185

69,317

3,152,146

61,719

3,329,367

961,490

161,231

69,709

28,017

1,599

48,383

7,768

12,635

9,291

12,919

24

9,061

4,000

26,325

542

1,352,994

$  392,231 $ 1,252,726 $ 207.432 $ 1.976.373
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Emergency

Services

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:

Local/county government

Donations/contributions

Other public support
Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:
HUD

Other

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Total revenues

98.304

Other

Non-BBH

15,872 $

8,267

96,140

9,663

10,122

747

628

394.184

210.000

Integrated

Health Grant

Bureau of

Drug & Alcohol
Services

1,595

238.368 605,559

994

14,468

4,033

1,229

103

22,422

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Client wages

Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

536,321

83,172

37,790

7,873

549

28,497

3,655

9,365

22,467

79

22

5,404

1,676

16,215
60

281,990

67,005

20,287

6,777

654

15,258

2,358

4,880

1,972

1,746

2,660

,  908

139

45

10,980

439

144,308

22,609

10,566

1,500

660

7.147

1,037

2.148

851

2

1,426

426

1,536
270

753,145 406,679 11,419 194.486

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENSES $  (514.777) $ 198.880 $ (11.419) $ (172,064)
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REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support;

Local/county government

Donations/contributions

Other public support
Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:
HUD

Other

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Drug
Court

48,028

570

292.834

Vocational

Services

138,039

29,761

Restorative

Partial

Hospital

92

Case

Management

35,347

1,849,201

189

566

42.280 24.601

Total revenues 383,712 167,800 92 1,909,904.

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Client wages
Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues
Bad debt expense
Other expenses

277,418

60,541

19,504

4,371

269

7,266

1,591

3,949

4,473

1,908

1,959

830

16,884
2,324

140,446

38,606

13,826

41,176

2,713

214

10,242

2,114

2,299

10,446

8,291

1,475

469

3,689
1,287

47,116

12,990

3,450

581

5

2,537

442

754

160

118

510

159

114

494

839,839

186,430

- 62,613

12,316

568

41,715

7,558

11,528

10,508

26,180

34

8,099

2,614

69,011

4,020

Total expenses 403,287 277,293 69,430 1,283,033

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES $  (19,575) $ (109,493) $ (69,338) $ 626,871
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Continued

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICBS INC

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:
Local/county government
Donations/contributions

Other public support
Bureau of Developmental Services

and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:
HUD

Other

Private foundation grants

Other revenues

Total revenues

Supportive

Living

6,369

1,917,620

1,923,989

Community
Residences

5,249

41,170

1,280,517

86,250

1,251

1.414,437

Bridge

Grant

Victims of

Crime Act

8,399

1,871

129,687

10,965

3,538

182,847

7,984

320.914

190,831 475.374

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Client wages
Professional fees

Staff development and training

Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

544,477

143,351

41,232

8,803

372

35,606

5,231

8,328

5,553

17,977

6,014

1,935

13,449

661

811,624

196,885

59,908

4.050

95

44,115

21,676

9,137

10,255

2,155

71

2,763

839

8,518

7,660

50,868

11,749

3,661

422

600

119,154

686

521

203

2,639

365

198

407,713

69,461

28,644

5,633

396

20,584

2,431

5,096

2,652

6

10

3,773

1,445

11,810

832,989 1,179,751 191,066 559,654

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES 1,091,000 234,686 (235) $ (84,280)
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVIOFS IMP

Continued

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Other Total

ACT Mental Health Mental Health 2020

Team Proa rams Proarams Summarized

REVENUES

Program service fees: •

Client fees $ 33,915 $ . $  305,713 $  572,870
Residential fees 23.028 - 64,198 69,223
Blue Cross 963 270 208,955 182,887

Medicaid 1.438,380 2,856 13,063,543 12,177,461
Medicare 58,055 - 649,861 527,140
Other insurance 1,199 - 433,282 315,887

Local educational authorities . -

Vocational rehabilitation . . • 5,500
Other program fees - - 960 589

Production/service Income - 218,339 248,100 194,429
Public support:

Local/county government - - 411,211 403,207
Donations/contributions - - 7,881 2,810
Other public support - - 330,627 312,719

Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health 1,285,167 119,394 1.771,962 890,611
Other federal and state funding:
HUD - - . 75,565
Other - - . 109,947

Private foundation grants - 95,174 306,674 273,486
Other revenues - 12,912 192,359 89,605

Total revenues 2,840,707 448,945 17,995,326 16,203,936

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages $ 980,105 S 176,956 $  7,775.256 $  7,256,309
Employee benefits 185,253 25,838 1,475,632 1,443,451
Payroll taxes 67,045 18,105 566,611 511,611
Client wages 7,152 56,093 104,421 108,499
Professional fees 26,246 1,354 136,954 206,342
Staff development and training 2,166 85 10,842 19,191
Occupancy costs 68,851 22,785 569,962 604,577
Consumable supplies 6,023 36,052 124,142 196,136
Equipment expenses 12,052 18,847 135,587 105,910

Communications 5,171 6,563 111,291 131,115
Travel and transportation 21,851 11,518 109,925 189,477
Assistance to individuals 9 . 393 1,961
Insurance 8,614 641 69,257 51,989
Memttership dues 4,436 198 30,928 24,205
Bad debt expense 53,517 4,969 295,875 508,139
Other expenses 270 18,345 11,145

Total expenses 1,448,491 380,274 11.535,421 . 11,370,057

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENSES $ 1,392,216 $ 68,671 $  6,459,905 $  4,833.879
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Service

Coordination

REVENUES

Program service fees;
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:

Local/county government

Donations/contributions

Other public support
Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:
HUD

Other

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Client wages
Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

1,024,103

51,191

School

District

Contracts

Day

Programs

36,511

3,175,257

1,350

22,299

32,667

200

Early

Supports

& Services

$  14,803

33.579

925,568

45,782

2,478

81,792

2,036

Independent

Living

Services

185,552

1,075,294 36,511 3,234,251 1,103,560 185,552

$  473,259 $ 53,841 $ 1,568,347 $  468,930 $  71,126

97.243 9,020 643,089 89,903 45,839

35,771 4.100 126,667 ■  34,889 5,478

. - 15,581 - -

471,423 189 486,570 141,229 22,515

285 15 711 1,958 71

44,849 2,557 204,494 9,439 5,319

9,129 550 33,585 5,627 1,120

5,103 525 61,073 4,055 986

4,848 316 24,762 14,168 718

3,678 - 186,346 27,314 871

. - 3,751 58 1

4,655 628 23,442 4,928 1,097

9 2 3,200 117 2

. 3,463 13,759 94,766 603

- - 294 - -

1,150,252 75,206 3,395,671 897,381 155,746

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES $  (74,958) $ (38,695) $ (161,420) $ 206,179 $ 29.806
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Continued

REVENUES

Program service fees;
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:
Local/county government

Donations/contributions

Other public support

Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:
HUD

Other

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Client wages

Professional fees

Staff development and training

Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues
Bad debt expense

Other exf>enses

Total expenses

Family
Residence

166.041

7,745,381

5.443

13,112

6.782.719

Combined Day/ Individual
Residential Supported

Vendor Living

Consolidated

Services

1,833,352

39,183

476,812 2,910,705

1,798,547 420,899 2,764,357

Combined Day/

Residential

Services

2,049,449

7,929,977 1,833,352 515.995 2,910,705 2,049,449

$ 2,184,896 $ $  266,429 $  776,126 $  18,924

527,726 . 76,555 129,796 4,112

163,381 - 19,780 50,841 1,451

4,813 - - - -

3,587,226 1.798,547 1,293 1,674,606 1,639,235

2,566 . 389 384 37

130,094 - 35,618 3,979 1,530

80,845 . 10,652 15,169 10,628

19,102 - 1,810 2,981 257

27,246 - 1,972 27,762 894

29,562 - 3,921 51,214 -

29 - - 25,574 -

20,734 - 2,476 3,002 254

450 - 4 2,844 -

3,951 - - - -

98 - - 79 -

1,677,322

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES $  1,147,258 $  34,805 $ 95,096 $ 146,348 $ 372,127
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Continued

Acquired

Brain

Disorder

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Other

Developmental

Services

Programs

8,587

Total

Developmental

Services

Programs

14,803

213,811

33,579

2020

Summarized

24,870
221,166

36,243

Medicaid 426,019 6,290,624 27,042,822 27,575.809

Medicare - - - -

Other insurance - - 45,782 62,045

Local educational authorities - . 36,511 128,424

Vocational rehabilitation - - 1,350 7,277

Other program fees ■ • - -

Production/service income - - 27.742 132,987

Public support:

Local/county government - - 32,667 2,400

Donations/contributions - - 200 17,512

Other public support - - ■ -

Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health - 74,534 156,326 296,362

Other federal and state funding:

HUD - - - -

Other - - - -

Private foundation grants - - - -

Other revenues . 1,600 70,417 66,433

Total revenues 426,019 6,375,345 27,676,010 28,571,528

XPENSES

Salaries and wages $  30,797 $  380,091 $  6,292,766 $  7,288,247

Employee benefits 13,783 53,058 1,690,124 2,018,023

Payroll taxes 2,237 30,036 474,631 505,954

Client wages - - 20,394 98,994

Professional fees 64,018 5,393,465 15,280,316 13,952,776

Staff development and trainirig 51 1,058 7,525 19,969

Occupancy costs 1,086 14,049 453,014 510.258

Consumable supplies 292 8,491 176,088 206,721

Equipment expenses 327 2,736 98,955 141,286

Communications 427 5,478 108,591 118,675

Travel and transportation 401 4,389 307,696 646,801

Assistance to individuals - 10,019 39,432 77,038

Insurance 337 3,753 65,306 73,139

Membership dues 1 404 7,033 16,785

Bad debt expense - - 116,542 108,562

Other expenses - - 471 3,158

Total expenses 113,757 5,907,027- 25,138,884 25,786,386

KCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES $  312,262 $  468,318 $  2,537,126 $  2,785,142
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WQRTHgRM HUMAM SgRVICFS tNC

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

U.S. D«partm«nt of Juatic*

Crime Victkn AssistarKe

Total U.S. Depanmeni of Justice

U.S. Oeoartment of Treasury

Cororwifus Relief Fund

Total U.S. Department of Treasury

U.S. Deoaftment of Education

Special Education Grants for Infants and
Families

Total U.S. Department of Education

U.S. Oeoartment of Health A Human Services

Provider Rellel Fund

Emergency Grants to AdA«ss Mental and

Substance Use Disorders During COVID-19

Medfeaid Ouster

Medical Assistance Program

Medical Assistance Program

Rural Health Care Services Outreach and Rural

Health Network Development Program

Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services

TOTAL

ASSISTANCE

UST1NG

number

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

16.575 New Hampshire Department ol Justice

State of NH Governor's OfTice of Emergency

Relief and Recovery COVlD-19 Long Term
Care Statittzation Program

21.019

State of NH DepanmerS of Health and
Human Services. Division of Long Term

64.18IA Supports and Services

93.498 Direct Award

State of NH Department of Health artd
Human Services. DMsion for Behavioral

93.665 Health

State of NH Department of Health and

Human Services, Division for Behaviorai

93.778 Health

Slate of NH Department of Health arx)
Human Sen/ices. Division for Behavioral

93.778 Health

93.912 North Country Health Ccrtsortlum

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NUMBER

20I6VOCAI, 2016VOCA2

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

N/A

05-95-93-930010-7852

N/A

05-95-92-922010-I909

05-95-92-922010-4121

05-95-49-490510-2985

Unkrtown

5.000

43,251

$  312.719

$  312.719

$  931.371

S  931.371

$  34,700

$  34,700

S  46,564

70.916

48.251

54,963

$  220,694

$ 1.499.484

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes
the federal award activity of Northern Human Services, Inc. under programs of the
federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information in this Schedule
is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform.Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents
only a selected portion of the operations of Northern Human Services, Inc., it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained In the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Northern Human Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent de minimis indirect
cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Northern Human Services, Inc.

Conway, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Northern Human Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of
activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 1, 2022.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Northern
Human Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Northern Human Services, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Northern Human Sen/Ices, Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a deficiency in
internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
item 2021-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Northern Human Services, Inc.'s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Northern Human Services. Inc.'s Response to Findings

Northern Human Services, Inc.'s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Northern Human Services,. Inc.'s

response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

March 1,2022
North Conway, New Hampshire
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Northern Human Services, Inc.
Conway, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Northern Human Services, Inc.'s (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization)
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance
Supplement iUai could have a direct and material effect on each of Northern Human Services, Inc.'s
major federal programs for the year ended June 30. 2021. Northern Human Services, Inc.'s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibilitv
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Northern Human Services,
Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and
the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Northern Human Services. Inc.'s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary In the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Northern Human
Services, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Maior Federal Program
In our opinion. Northern Human Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Northern Human. Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Northern Human
Services, Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on Internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Northern Human Services, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies In internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness In Internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 1. 2022
North Conway, New Hampshire
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of
Northern Human Services, Inc. were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. One material weakness disclosed during the audit of the financial statements Is reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompllance material to the financial statements of Northern Human
Services, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Govemment
Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Northern
Human Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The program tested as a major program was: U.S. Department of the Treasury: Coronavirus
Relief Fund, ALN 21.019.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Northern Human Services, Inc. was determined not to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2021-001 - Reconciliation process and month end close

Criteria: Internal controls should be in place to ensure that all cash accounts are reconciled
between the general ledger and bank statements every month in a timely manner.

Condition: Significant entries were required for cash as timely reconciliations were not
being kept as part of the financial statement close process each month and at year end.

Cause: Internal controls were not in place to ensure that monthly bank reconciliations are
prepared in a timely manner each month.

Effect: Financial statement information utilized by management in making decisions may
not be timely or accurate; errors found in preparing bank reconciliations that required
significant journal entries were not found until several months after year end.
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Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented to ensure that monthly
reconciliations for all cash accounts are being performed in a timely manner.

Views of Responsible Officials: Up until last fiscal year, the Organization has always had
a process in place to perform the bank reconciliations in a timely manner.

The main reason these were not done timely is due to some staff turnover (retirements)
NHS has had, as well as COVID. NHS had a long term staff accountant retire. She was
responsible for the bank reconciliations in addition to many other duties as it relates to
month end closings, and backup for the payroll associate. NHS had trouble recruiting for
that position and ultimately the department got behind in trying to cover that part of her
duties. There was also another staff accountant position that retired and due to COVID,
NHS had trouble recruiting for that position as well, further delaying the reconciliations.

Going forward, the bank reconciliations will be done monthly during each month end
closing process. This will be reviewed by the CFO or designee to ensure adherence to this
procedure.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2020-001 - Reconciliation process and month end close

Condition: Significant entries were required for cash as timely reconciliations were not
being kept as part of the financial statement close process each month and at year end.

Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented to ensure that monthly
reconciliations for all cash accounts are being performed in a timely manner.

Current Status: The finding was repeated during the year ended June 30, 2021.
Subsequent to June 30. 2021, NHS completed catching up on all reconciliations, and these
are now being completed timely.
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Northern Human Services Board of Directors

Office Home

Officers:

Staff:

Term

Expires

'25

'23

•23

Madelene Costello, President
Dorothy Borchcrs, Vice President
James Salmon, Treasurer

Georgia Caron, Secretary (5.9.23 interim until 9.5.23 nominations)

Suzanne Gaetjens-Oieson, CEO
Shawn Bromley, CFO
Susan Wiggin, CEO Assistant
Kassie Eafrali, COO, Mental Health

Liz Charles, COO, Developmental Services

The Mental Health Center

3 Twelfth St., Berlin 03570
Community Services Center

69 Willard St., Berlin 03570

Margaret McClellan^
•Stephen Michaud,
•Dorothy Borchers,

Donald Bazzell

Director of BH

Lynn Johnson
Director of DS

447-8137

447-8022

447-8018

752-7404

447-8010

752-7404

752-1005

Term

10.22-10.24

10.22- 10.24

10.21 - 10.23

6/01

11/02

05/17

'24

'23

'24

'24

'26

'23

'25

•25

The Mental Health Center

25 W. Main St., Conway 03818
70 Bay St., Wolfeboro 03894
New Horizons (also Tamworth)

626 Eastman Rd., Ctr. Conway 03813

•Maddie Costello,
•Carrie Duran,

James Salmon,

Julie Bosak,

The Mental Health Center

55 Colby St., Colebrook 03576
69 Brooklyn St., Groveton 03582
Vershire Center

24 Depot Street, Colebrook, NH 03576

Georgia Caron,

Valeda Cerasale

Director of BH

Shanon Mason

Director of DS

447-2111

569-1884

356-6310

Stacey Smith
Director of BH

Lynn Johnson
Director of DS

White Mountain Mental Health Amy Finkle
29 Maple St., Box 599, Littleton 03561 Director of BH
Common Ground (also Littleton, Woodsville) Mark Vincent
24 Lancaster Rd., Whitefield 03584 Director of DS

Annette Carbonneau,

Paul J. Smith,

Troy Memer,

237-4955

636-2555

237-5721

444-8501

837-9547

9/06

1/17

11/03

11/21

5/23'

11/20

5/22

5/22

Executive Committee: M. Costello, Dorothy Borchers, Jim Salmon, Georgia Caron, S. Michaud, M. McClellan, S. Gaetjens-Oleson

Finance Committee J. Salmon, M. McClellan, S. Michaud, D. Borchers, M. Costello, Shawn Bromley, S. Gaetjens-Oleson
Program Committee: M. McClellan, M. Costello, Julie Brosak, Georgia Caron, L. Charles, K. Eafrati

*Member representing consumer with dcvclopmcntnl disability / NOTE: Bylaws state that a minimum of 7 meetings, including the /Vnnual Business Meeting, must be held.

IMPORTANT: Send updated listing to AG's Office / Fax to Provider inlegrit}' (see Rose'.s 4.8.21 email in Outlook Inbox BOD)

Last revised: 12/19,4/20,5/20,9/20, 10/20, 11/20,2/21.7/21,8/21,12/21, 1.19.22,2.23.22,3.16.22,3.28.22,4.21.22.6.13.22.8.1.22. 10/22,5/23



DocuSign Envelope ID; BE109C64-0DD2-4039-B79F-F92D1ABD5098

Suzanne Gae^ns-Oleson, MACP, LCMHC

Educational History:

Bachelor of Arts, Psychology Major, Hampshire College, Amherst, MA, 1993

Master of Counseling Psychology, Antioch New England Graduate School, Keene, NH, 1996

Employment History:

Chief Executive Officer, Northern Human Services, December 2021 -present Assists in the formulation of
policy by proposing policy to the boards, interprets and implements policy throughout corporations
prepares and presents essential reports to the boards facilitating their effective governance to include:
financial, personnel, operational, quality assessment, program evaluation, etc.. Maintain an effective and
efTlcient organizational structure, prepares short and long-term plans and presents such to the boards for
approval, maintain knowledge of state-of-the-art practices in core services offered by the corporations,
represent the interests of the corporations in legislative hearings, state wide and local meetings, maintain
compliance with applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations

Regional Mental Health Administrator, Operations, Northern Human Ser\nces, May 2013-present Direct
the regional management, operations and provision of services to individuals with mental illness and
substance abuse in accordance with Agency Policy, federal and state laws and regulations. Responsible for
overseeing compliance efforts in the Agency, and the members of the Quality Improvement and
Compliance Team. Responsible for overseeing the Electronic Medical Record team and leading the
agencies efforts to comply with Meaningful Use Requirements. Oversee program development and
implementation as directed by the CEO. Work with Area Directors to ensure that all contract requirements
are met. Represent NHS on the NCHC board.

Director, Quality Improvement/Compliance, Northern Human Services, February 2012-May 2013,
Responsibility for Corporate Compliance and Quality Improvement functions such as assisting
management with the ongoing review and amendment of administrative and treatment policies;
investigating and acting on matters related to compliance, including management of internal reports of
concern, leading and coordinating the preparation for reviews of the Agency by external entities,
maintaining quality improvement processes that measure outcomes of services delivered, using data from
information technology systems to analyze, create and disseminate reports that summarize service
utilization and trends; coordinating regional planning processes and developing plan documents for funding
sources as required. Coordinate, synthesize and provide summary reports of quality indicators to MC on a
regular basis. Provide necessary compliance trainings to staff.

Director of Children's Services, June 2000-February 2012 Northern Human Services, White Mountain
Mental Health, June 2000 to present. Responsible for the supervision and management of the "children's
team", represent Northern Human Ser\'ices at Children's Director's state team meeting, writing small
grants, developing and sustaining positive collaborative relationships with other child serving systems,
maintain children's charts to Medicaid and federal standards, maintain clinical caseload.

Clinician, White Mountain Mental Health and Developmental Services, May 1996-June 2000. Assessment
and ongoing counseling with children and families. Daytime emergency service coverage.
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Emergency Ser>'ice Clinician, White Mountain Mental Health and Development Services, April 1995-
May 1996. Day and night coverage of emergency services to psychiatric patients including psychosocial
assessments and emergency evaluations and interventions.

Charge Counselor, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, and Bethlehem NH. May 1993-Novcmbcr
1994. Conducted psychosocial assessments, emergency evaluations, provided direct counseling services
and staff supervision at this group home for emotionally disturbed adolescent females. (This home has
changed ownership since I was employed there and is now part of the NFl system.)

Continuing Education Experiences:

-Two intensive weeklong seminars with Daniel Hughes, which focused on work with children who have
suffered trauma, loss, and disrupted attachment.

-Seminars required for License (total 65 continuing education credits during every two-year license period,
including si.x ethics credits)

-Trauma Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy-trained with Dartmouth, received weekly supervision
with Craig Donnelly, MD and Sarah Stems, PhD.

Helping the Non-compliant Child-trained with Dartmouth, received weekly supervision with Sarah Stems,
PhD.

Coal: To continue working in a capacity that supports people affected by mental illness and
developmental disabilities and promotes their ability to be positive contributors and participants in their
communities.

References Available Upon Request
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Shawn Marl

EDUCATION

2015-]anuary 2017

1999-2000

1983-1987

.2010-Current

Master of Business Administration Van Loan/Endicott College Beverly, MA
Specialty: Project Management
Accounting Class (MBA) Babson College Wellesley, MA
Bachelorof Fine Arts (Graphics) Boston University Boston, MA
AHIMA - Certified Coding Associate (CCA)
AHIMA - Webinar Presenter (Risk Adjustment & Telehealth)

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

July 2022 - Present Northern Human Services & Shallow River Properties Conway, NH
Chief Financial Officer

•  Develops financial well-being of the organization by providing financial projections and
accounting services, preparing growth plans, and directing staff.

•  Monitors financial performance by measuring and analyzing results, initiating corrective
actions, and minimizing the impact of variances.

•  Maximizes return on invested funds by identifying investment opportunities and
maintaining relationships with the investment community.

•  Reports financial status by developing forecasts, reporting results, analyzing variances, and
developing improvements.

•  Accomplishes finance human resource strategies by determining accountabilities;
communicatingand enforcing values, policies, and procedures; implementing recruitment,
selection, orientation, training, coaching, counseling, disciplinary, and communication
programs; planning, monitoring, appraising, and reviewing job contributions; and planning
and reviewing compensation strategies.

•  Establishes finance operational strategies by evaluating trends; establishing critical
measurements; determining production, productivity, quality, and customer-service
strategies; designing systems; accumulating resources; resolving problems; and
implementing change.

•  Develops organization prospects by studying economic trends and revenue opportunities;
projecting acquisition and expansion prospects; analyzing organization operations;
identifying opportunities for improvement, cost reduction, and systems enhancement; and
accumulating capital to fund expansion.

October 2018 - July 2022 Northeast Physician Hospital Organization (NEPHO) Beverly, MA
Director of Contracting and Operations

•  Developed and implemented a Coding Task Force that works directly with providers and
practices to increase overall risk score. The Coding Task Force reviews payer related data
that is driven by diagnosis coding across the organization. Coding education focus is driven
by gaps identified within claims data collection.

•  Developed monthly coding and billing webinars that provided information related to
current coding and billing on a state and natlohal level.

•  Provider risk adjustment diagnosis capture education and Evaluation and Management
education and provider focused audits.

• Working with 9 practices to ensure accuracy in Risk Adjustment coding capture on an
annual basis.
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Shawn Maria Bromley

Awarded $33,500 for the HPHC Quality Grant funding for 2019-2020 that supported a
Telehealth Pilot Program.
Managed the Telehealth application process for the Federal Communications Commission
[FCC) COViD 19 funding opportunity.
Lead the implementation of Telehealth across the NEPHO organization during the COVID 19
crisis.

Developed and lead the NEPIIO Telehealth Committee.
Working with NEPHO practices and providers to ensure a sustainable telehealth program is
implemented that is HIPAA compliant.
Oversee NEPHO organization daily operations that include; financial, staffing needs,
meeting scheduling, team building, project management, coding education and auditing,
physician practice needs, provider requests on an Ad Hoc basis.
Research Medicare/Medicaid and Commercial payer guidelines to ensure accurate
regulatory guidance to providers.
Manage a team of 4 direct reports and 10 indirect reports.

May 2018 - September 2018 Steward Medical Group
Auditor/Educator Professional Services

Watertown, MA

•  Educated all new provider hires to ensure an understanding of coding and billing
requirements for Evaluation and Management services.

•  Audited all new providers for Evaluation and Management services for primary care and
specialty focus.

•  Helped worked NCCI edits that were based off LCD and NCD requirements.

May 2017 - May 2018 Commonwealth Care Alliance Boston, MA
Reimbursement Analyst

•  Chair, Payment Policy Committee - Developed all provider focused payment policies.
•  Researched Medicare and Medicaid guidelines to ensure accurate regulatory guidance to

help support the development of payment policies that drove reimbursement.
• Work directly with the Committee that consists of Leadership from Business Intelligence,

Claims. Provider Relations, Legal, Member Services, Contracting and Clinical. The
Committee met on a regular basis to address and discuss business decisions necessary to
payment policy development.

•  Managed the Medicare and Medicaid regulatory database for the claims department.
• Work directly with the billing vendor to ensure all regulatory notices were being reviewed,

discussed requirements and implemented guidance in a timely manner to ensure
compliance standards were followed.

•  Research included coding and billing requirements related to Outpatient, Inpatient, Home
Health, SNF, Hospice and Durable Medical Equipment Services

•  Managed and reviewed all Individual Consideration and Unlisted coding denials.
• Worked on the implementation of the NCCi edit project that supported the claims scrubber

system.

•  Helped developed standardized claims review that helped better manage reimbursement
and denial recovery.
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Shawn Maria Bromley

2014 April 2017 North Shore Medical Center - Partners Healthcare Salem MA
Partners Coding Supervisor (Facility & Professional)

• , EPIC implementation - Lead the E Care workflow development, provided current and
future workflow state that included coding process review for Inpatient. Emergency Room,
Ambulatory/Ancillary & Surgical service areas

•  Managed 18 coders with the North Shore Medical Center coding department
•  Oversaw and managed workflow for offsite coders - 5 NSMC coders & 7 Contraa coders
•  Managed daily workflow operations across the NSMC Coding Department
•  Helped to code and managed workflow for Emergency Room professional and facility

coding
•  Interpreted and applied Medicare and Private insurance policy guidelines to help ensure

accurate coding
•  Managed all department coding edits and denials to ensure accurate revenue capture across

all hospital services
•  Committee member on the Medical Cosmetic Committee that focused on accurate coding

and billing for Cosmetic services to ensure compliance and revenue capture
•  Super User in EPIC Training and Education - EPIC Implementation Focus Group
•  Assisted with efforts to streamline revenue cycle operations within the North Shore Medical

Center

•  Helped to optimize the reimbursement process that includes; verify compliance accuracy
related to diagnosis and procedure coding, follow CMS guidelines related to documentation
requirements and helped to manage timely billing process to ensure timely filing

2009-May 2014 Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center Boston MA
Coding and Compliance Manager & Auditor - Cardiology (Professional)

•  Managed 3 coders and 1 billing coordinator
•  Managed coding and billing for Boston and 6 Offsite Cardiology locations
•  Direct and oversaw ongoing Physician, Fellow and Nurse Practitioner education
•  Interpreted and applied Medicare and Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center billing and

compliance guidelines for divisional procedures and operational workflows
•  Assisted with efforts to streamline revenue cycle process across the Cardiology department

for all locations

•  Audited and analyzed medical records documentation for Inpatient, Outpatient,
Electrophysiology, Catheterizations, and Cardiovascular testing

•  Ensured all coding and billing meet department and Medicare compliance guidelines
•  Verified accurate coding for all E&M level coding within the Cardiology Emergency Room

Department and Outpatient Clinics
•  Provided feedback for all root-cause billing delinquencies to appropriate departments
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ELIZABETH CHARLES

WORK EXPERIENCE

Reeional Administrator. Developmental Sennces. Northern Human Services.

Primary responsibility is to direct the regional management and provision of
services to individuals with developmental disabilities and acquired brain
disorders. Responsiblefor the direct supen'ision of the IMS and PDMS Programs.
DD Quality Improvement initiatives, supennses the Director. Developmental
Services, -New Horizons and Vershire and also the Community Care Waiver
Coordinator, Ql/Compliance Coordinator and Office Manager at Center Office.
Additionally responsiblefor program planning and development, budgeting and
control, accountability, revenue maximization and assurance ofquality of care,
including the Agency's maintenance ofaccreditation

Reeional Coordinator. Developmental Sendees. Northern Human Services.

Conway. NH. January 2006 - present. Primary responsibility is to coordinate
region-wide activities and initiatives within the Developmental Services System.
Other responsibilities include regular State reporting of various demographic,
medical and financial information, coordination and facilitation of monthly DS
Program Directors meetings, maintaining knowledge of State rides and
regulations pertaining to Developmental Services and various other projects as
necessary. Responsibility also includes supervision of the In Home Support
Coordinator. Consumer Directed Ser\>ices Coordinator and Community Care
Waiver Coordinator.

Director ofProsrams and Serxdces. The Center ofHope, North Conway, NH.
September 2004 - January 2006. Supennse, lead and direct a team ofResource
Service Coordinators to assure the best quality and most efficient supportfor the
individuals receiving sennces. This role has overall responsibilityfor Individual
Service Agreements, Residential. Day Supports and Sen'ice Coordination. Also
responsible for intake eligibility and waitlist management including budgetary
work. Participate as a member of the Agency Management Team.

Sendee Coordination Supennsor. The Center ofHope. North Conway, NH.
Perform all thefunctions of a Sendee Coordinator as well as supendsion ofother
Sendee Coordinators and administrative support staff. Agency liaison with the
Family Support Council.

Other positions held at Center of Hope include Sendee Coordinator. Program
Manager in the Day Program and Residential Program Manager. Began
employment in February, 2005.
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Proeram Assistant. Student Life Office, University ofSouthern Maine, Portland,
Maine, September 1991-December 1992. Developed and implemented special
projects as well as departmental programs.

EDUCATION

B.S. Deeree University ofSouthern Maine, Portland, Maine.
Major — Therapeutic Recreation.

REFERENCES

Available upon request
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Contractor Name

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Suzanne Gaetjens-Oleson CEO $75,000.00

Shawn Bromley CFO $69,533.00

Liz Charles COO, DS $105,373.00


